
【附件一】 

案名: 英國倫敦 1 Carter Lane 

一、基本資料 
繼受日期 2015 年 1 月 16 日 
股權交割日期 2015 年 1 月 16 日 
公司名稱 Carter Lane (Guernsey)Limited 
不動產所在地 1 Carter Lane and 2 Old Change Court，倫敦、英國 
土地面積 54,673 sqft (約 1,536 坪) 
建物面積 129,081 sqft (約 3,627 坪) 
建物樓層 B1~5F 
使用情形 辦公室 
 
二、租金收益率檢核 
                                租金收益率檢核                          £ , %                
契約年租金   £6,871,959 
最新不動產估值(2020 年 12 月 31 日)     £128,000,000 
以估值計算收益率   5.37% 
估值收益率是否符合當地市場行情      是 
註：大樓出租率 100%，估值收益率 5.37%，因本案為地上權產品，略高於當地辦公大樓買

賣成交市場行情 3.75%~4.9%。 
 
三、承租概況 

  

樓層 使用類型 承租戶 租賃面積 年租金 租金起算日 租約到期日 剩餘租期 (年)
5F 7,951 sqft £516,815
4F 16,841 sqft £1,060,983

LGF 16,387 sqft £773,139
3F 18,284 sqft £1,133,608
2F 18,232 sqft £1,112,152
1F 辦公室 Natixis Investment Manager UK (下稱Natixis) 16,597 sqft £995,820 3 Aug 2017 24 Mar 2025 4.69
GF 辦公室 Cundall Johnston & Paterner (下稱Cundall) 15,409 sqft £901,427 13 Jul 2016 8 Sep 2025 4.23
GF 接待大廳 - 1,582 sqft

大樓管理中心 管理中心 2,468 sqft £18,240
1,886 sqft £28,230 2 Jul 2018
983 sqft £14,280 23 Oct 2017

SEB 3,776 sqft £56,640 29 Oct 2016 28 Sep 2029 8.75
Natixis 751 sqft £11,265 19 Jun 2020 24 Mar 2025 4.69
Cundall 1,124 sqft £16,860 13 Jul 2016 8 Sep 2025 4.23
MFS 汽車1輛 £3,500 23 Oct 2017 30 Apr 2034 13.34
SEB 汽車5輛/機車6輛 £26,500 29 Oct 2016 28 Sep 2029 8.75

Natixis 汽車4輛/機車1輛 £15,500 19 Jun 2020 24 Mar 2025 4.69
Cundall 汽車1輛 £3,500 13 Jul 2016 8 Sep 2025 4.23

GB Group PLC(下稱GB) 汽車1輛 £3,500 8 Jan 2020 7 Jan 2021 0.02

B1, LGF, GF 零售/酒吧 Marston Thompson and Eversheds 6,810 sqft £180,000 16 Jan 2015 21 May 2023 2.39
總計 (總車位數12輛) 129,081 sqft £6,871,959 8.97

儲藏室

B1

MFS 30 Apr 2034

停車場

      2 Old Change Court 樓層使用及面積表

13.34

8.7529 Oct 2016 28 Sep 2029
Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB

(下稱SEB)

辦公室

辦公室

 One Carter Lane 樓層使用及面積表

MFS International UK
(下稱MFS) 23 Oct 2017 30 Apr 2034 13.34
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Directors' Report

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Sunil Masson

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements of Carter Lane (Guernsey) Limited (the "Company") for the year ended 31

December 2020. 

Principal activities

The Company was incorporated on 19 April 2011 as a private company in Guernsey, Channel Islands with registered number 53373. The

Company's acquisition was completed on 16 January 2015 by Fubon Life Insurance Company Limited ("Fubon"), and the Company, as London

& Stamford Offices II Limited changed its name to Carter Lane (Guernsey) Limited (the "Company"). The Company is the owner of the

property, One Carter Lane and Two Old Change Court, London EC4V 5EN (the "Property"). The registered office of the Company is 11 New

Street, St. Peter Port, Guernsey GY1 2PF, Channel Islands.

The principal activity of the Company is to invest in commercial property in the United Kingdom.

Results

Since the announcement of the COVID-19 global pandemic by the World Health Organisation on 11 March 2020, there has been significant

market volatility and economic disruption. The Directors have considered the impact of COVID-19 on the going concern assumption of the

Company. The Company has a net current assets position of £1,457,564 as at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: net current liabilities of

£54,473,748). For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company made a profit after tax of £2,870,105 (31 December 2019: £2,700,005).

Rental income has been received during the year ended 31 December 2020 and the Company is expected to generate further rental income for

the foreseeable future. The Directors are closely monitoring the evolution of this pandemic, including how it may affect the economy and general

population. The Directors have concluded that the impact of COVID-19 does not represent a material uncertainty in relation to the Company’s

ability to continue as a going concern through to the date of the issuance of these financial statements.

Date: 18 March 2021

A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG LLP will be proposed in the upcoming board meeting.

By order of the Board

Director

COVID-19 pandemic

Subsequent events

There have been no significant events after the reporting date and up to the date of signing these financial statements that require disclosure.

The results for the year are set out on page 7. 

Going concern

Based on the cash flow forecasts for the 12 months period from the signing of the Statement of Financial Position, the Company has adequate

cash resources to meet its requirements. Therefore the Directors have prepared the Company's financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Directors consider that the Company will continue to generate positive cash flows from its operating activities on its own account for the

foreseeable future bearing in mind the assets of the Company. On 9 January 2020, the Company has entered into a facility agreement with Fubon

Life Insurance Company Limited to renew the existing shareholder loan. Per the updated facility agreement effective from 15 January 2020, the

shareholder loan is now repayable on 14 January 2025 and bears a fixed interest rate of 2.7% per annum.

Secretary

The Company secretary during the year and up to the date on which the financial statements were approved was Vistra Secretaries Limited.

Disclosure of information to the auditor

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors’ Report confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there is no relevant

audit information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware; and each Director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director

to make himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditor is aware of that information.

Independent Auditor
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

Under applicable law and regulations, the Directors are also responsible for preparing a Directors’ Report, that complies with that law and those

regulations.

The Directors are responsible for keeping sufficient accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial

position of the Company and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements are properly prepared and in accordance with The Companies

(Guernsey) Law, 2008. They are responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking such steps as are

reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Company and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;  

• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable, relevant and reliable;  

• state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial

statements;  

• assess the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and  

Statement of Directors' responsibilities in respect of the Directors' Report and the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and the Company financial statements in accordance with applicable law and

regulations. 

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law they have elected to prepare the

Company financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and applicable

law.  

The financial statements are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the

Company for that period.

• use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.  

In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to:  
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Opinion

Basis for opinion

Going concern

Our conclusions based on this work:

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (“fraud risks”) we assessed events or conditions that could indicate an incentive or

pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk assessment procedures included:   

• Enquiring of the Directors and management of whether they are aware of fraud and of the Company’s high-level policies and procedures to

prevent and detect fraud;

• Reading Board minutes;

• Using analytical procedures to identify any usual or unexpected relationships;

• Considering performance targets and incentives for management.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”) and applicable law. Our responsibilities

are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the Company in accordance with, UK ethical

requirements including FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our

opinion.  

The Directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend to liquidate the Company or to cease its

operations, and as they have concluded that Company’s financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no

material uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over its ability to continue as a going concern for at least a year from the date of

approval of the financial statements (“the going concern period”).  

In our evaluation of the Directors’ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the Company’s business model and analysed how those risks

might affect the Company’s financial resources or ability to continue operations over the going concern period.  

• we consider that the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate;

• we have not identified, and concur with the Directors’ assessment that there is not, a material uncertainty related to events or conditions that,

individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for the going concern period.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes that are inconsistent with

judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the above conclusions are not a guarantee that the Company will continue in

operation. 

Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations – ability to detect

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications of fraud throughout the audit.

As required by auditing standards, we perform procedures to address the risk of management override of controls, in particular the risk that

management may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting entries and the risk of bias in accounting estimates and judgements such as

investment property valuations.

On this audit we do not believe there is a fraud risk related to revenue recognition because the Company’s income primarily arises from

operating lease contracts with fixed, or highly predictable, periodic payments, the basis of all being contractual agreements.

Our procedures to detect fraud in the investment property valuations included:

• the use of our specialist valuers to challenge the methods used in the valuation;

• obtaining both confirmatory and non-confirmatory evidence to assess of the key inputs into the valuations.

We did not identify any additional fraud risks.

We also performed procedures including: 

• identifying journal entries to test based on risk criteria and comparing the identified entries to supporting documentation. These included testing

all material and high-risk post-closing journal entries.

We have audited the financial statements of Carter Lane (Guernsey) Limited ("the Company") for the year ended 31 December 2020 which

comprise the Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Changes in

Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and the related notes, including the accounting policies in note 2.

In our opinion the financial statements:  

• give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 December 2020 and of its profit for the year then ended;  

• are in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU; and  

• comply with the Companies (Guernsey) Law 2008.  
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Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation

Other information  

Matters on which we are required to report by exception  

Directors’ responsibilities  

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the financial statements from our

general commercial and sector experience and through discussion with the Directors (as required by auditing standards) and discussed with the

Directors the policies and procedures regarding compliance with laws and regulations.   

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications of non-compliance throughout the

audit.

Firstly, the Company is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements including financial reporting legislation

(including related companies’ legislation), and taxation legislation. We assessed the extent of compliance with these laws and regulations as part

of our procedures on the related financial statement items.  

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 3, the Directors are responsible for: the preparation of the financial statements and for

being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the ability to continue as a going concern,

disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate

the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.    

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies considerably.

We have nothing to report in these respects.  

Under the Companies (Guernsey) Law 2008 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:  

• the Company has not kept proper accounting records; or  

• the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records; or  

• we have not received all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief are necessary for the purpose of our

audit.  

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some material misstatements in the

financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the

further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely 

the inherently limited procedures required by auditing standards would identify it.  

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. Our audit procedures are designed to detect material misstatement. We are not

responsible for preventing non-compliance or fraud and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws or regulation.

The Directors are responsible for the other information presented in the Annual Report together with the financial statements. Our opinion on the

financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.  

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our financial statements audit work, the

information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work we

have not identified material misstatements in the other information.  

Secondly, the Company is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-compliance could have a material effect on

amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for instance through the imposition of fines or litigation. We identified the following areas as

those most likely to have such an effect: landlord and tenant legislation, property laws and building legislation, any property legal disputes and

recognising the nature of the Company’s activities.

Auditing standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and regulations to enquiry of the Directors and

other management and inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any. Therefore, if a breach of operational regulations is not disclosed

to us or evident from relevant correspondence, an audit will not detect that breach.

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and regulations
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Auditor’s responsibilities 

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor’s report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee

that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from

fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions

of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.  

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC’s website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. 

This report is made solely to the Company’s Members, as a body, in accordance with section 262 of the Companies (Guernsey) Law 2008. Our

audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s Members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s

report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the

Company and the Company’s Members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.  

KPMG LLP

London, E14 5GL

18 March 2021

Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square
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Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2020

For the year 

ended 31 

December 2020

For the year 

ended 31 

December 2019

Notes £ £

Revenue 5 7,248,609 7,550,493

Property operating expenses 6 (1,891,712) (1,918,656)

Fair value movement on investment property 11 599,360 879,460

Administrative expenses 7 (317,810) (322,079)

Operating profit 5,638,447 6,189,218

Net finance cost 8 (1,783,033) (2,875,313)

Profit for the year before tax 3,855,414 3,313,905

Income tax expense 9 (985,309) (613,900)

Profit for the financial year 2,870,105 2,700,005

Other comprehensive income - -

Total comprehensive income for the year 2,870,105 2,700,005

The accompanying notes on pages 11 to 21 form an integral part of these financial statements

All items dealt with in arriving at the total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 related to

continuing operations.



CARTER LANE (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

Page 8

Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2020

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

Notes £ £

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Investment property 11 125,245,951 124,646,591

Lease incentive 11 8,126,968 8,727,144

Head rent deposit 275,000 275,000

Total non-current assets 133,647,919 133,648,735

Current assets

Trade and other receivables 12 1,121,286 2,160,229

Cash and cash equivalents 13 3,537,016 4,491,722

Total current assets 4,658,302 6,651,951

Total assets 138,306,221 140,300,686

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Called up share capital 14 41,514,743 41,514,743

Retained earnings 34,208,082 31,337,977

Total equity 75,722,825 72,852,720

Current liabilities

Shareholder loan 15 - 57,080,375

Accrued interest 15 - 590,530

Trade and other payables 17 3,200,738 3,454,794

Total current liabilities 3,200,738 61,125,699

Non-current liabilities

Shareholder loan 15 52,830,375 -

Head lease liability 16 5,372,919 5,373,735

Deferred tax liability 9 1,179,364 948,532

Total non-current liabilities 59,382,658 6,322,267

Total equity and liabilities 138,306,221 140,300,686

Sunil Masson

Director

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 18 March 2021.

The accompanying notes on pages 11 to 21 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Share 

capital

Retained 

earnings

Total 

equity

£ £ £

Balance at 1 January 2019 41,514,743 28,637,972 70,152,715 

Total comprehensive income for the year -  2,700,005 2,700,005 

Balance at 31 December 2019 41,514,743 31,337,977 72,852,720 

Total comprehensive income for the year -  2,870,105 2,870,105 

Balance at 31 December 2020 41,514,743 34,208,082 75,722,825 

The accompanying notes on pages 11 to 21 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2020

For the year 

ended 31 

December 2020

For the year 

ended 31 

December 2019

Notes £ £

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit after tax 2,870,105 2,700,005

Adjustments to reconcile profit after tax to net cash flows

Income tax expense 9 985,309 613,900

Lease incentives 600,176 880,240

Fair value movement in investment property 11 (599,360) (879,460)

Financing costs 8 1,789,156 2,875,802

Working capital adjustments

Decrease/(Increase) in receivables 1,088,586 (1,209,753)

Increase in payables 52,650 81,201

Cash flows generated from operating activities 6,786,622 5,061,935

Income tax paid (1,081,165) (350,968)           

Net cash flows generated from operating activities 5,705,457 4,710,967

Cash flows from financing activities

Shareholder loan repaid 15 (4,250,000) (2,700,000)

Finance lease paid (240,000) (240,000)

Interest paid (2,170,163) (2,049,156)

Net cash flows used in financing activities (6,660,163) (4,989,156)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (954,706) (278,189)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 4,491,722 4,769,911

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 13 3,537,016 4,491,722

The accompanying notes on pages 11 to 21 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020

1. Organisation and business activity

2. Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

Going concern

- Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 - Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 (effective 1 January 2021)

- Reference to the Conceptual Framework - Amendments to IFRS 3 (effective 1 January 2022)

- IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (effective 1 January 2023)

- Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current - Amendments to IAS 1 (effective 1 January 2023)

The Company’s business activities are set out in the ‘Principal activities’ section of the Directors' Report on page 2.

The Company has made a profit after tax of £2,870,105 (31 December 2019: £2,700,005) for the year ended 31 December 2020 and it has

positive net assets of £75,722,825 (31 December 2019: £72,852,720).

Additionally, revenue is secured through property leases which have unexpired term of ranging from 3 to 14 years.

On 9 January 2020, the Company entered into a facility agreement with Fubon Life Insurance Company Limited to renew the existing

shareholder loan. Per the updated facility agreement effective from 15 January 2020, the shareholder loan is now repayable on 14 January 2025

and bears a fixed interest rate of 2.7% per annum.

(a) New and amended standards and interpretations

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations which have not been applied in these

financial statements were in issue but not yet effective and have not been adopted by the EU:

The Directors do not expect that the adoption of the Standards and Interpretations listed above will have a material impact on the financial

statements of the Company in future periods. 

The financial statements of Carter Lane (Guernsey) Limited (the "Company") for the year ended 31 December 2020 were authorised for issue in

accordance with a resolution of Directors on 18 March 2021.

The Company was incorporated on 19 April 2011 as a private company in Guernsey, Channel Islands with registered number 53373. The

Company's acquisition was completed on 16 January 2015 by Fubon Life Insurance Company Limited ("Fubon"), and the Company, as London

& Stamford Offices II Limited changed its name to Carter Lane (Guernsey) Limited (the "Company"). The Company is the owner of the

property, One Carter Lane and Two Old Change Court, London EC4V 5EN (the "Property"). The registered office of the Company is 11 New

Street, St. Peter Port, Guernsey GY1 2PF, Channel Islands.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement requirements of the International Financial

Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") and as adopted by the EU and the

Companies (Guernsey) Law 2008. 

These financial statements have been prepared under the historic cost convention except for investment property that is stated at its fair value. 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS as adopted by the EU requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It

also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. Changes in assumptions may

have a significant impact on the financial statements in the period the assumptions changed. The Directors believe that the underlying

assumptions are appropriate. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are

significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in note 4.  

All new and amended accounting standards which have become effective for the current year have been adopted but have had no material effect

on the reported performance, financial position or disclosures of the Company, therefore these standards have not been listed separately.

(b) New and amended standards issued, not yet effective and not early adopted

In 2020, due to the economic disruptions caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, one tenant has requested to move temporarily from quarterly to

monthly rental payments. This has been accepted by the Company, with the understanding that this will revert back to quarterly rental payments

in the foreseeable future. The tenant continues to pay its monthly rent in a timely manner, as such the Company deems that there are no further

actions required in relation to this tenant. As this is the only retail tenant in the property and represents only 3% of total rental income of the

Company, the Directors assess that the Company will still be able to generate positive cash flows and meet its liabilities even if no rental income

will be received in the next 12 months from this retail tenant.

On 8 September 2020, a loan repayment of £4,250,000 was made by the Company to Fubon as the Directors assess that the Company has excess

cash after meeting its obligations and therefore is in a position to make a partial loan repayment to reduce the outstanding balance of its

shareholder loan. The Directors continue to closely monitor the liquidity of the Company going forward.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

2. Accounting policies (continued)

Going concern (continued)

Foreign currency translation

Revenue recognition

Dividends

Interest

Expenses

Consequently, the Directors are confident that the Company will have sufficient funds to continue to meet its liabilities as they fall due for at

least 12 months from the date of approval of the financial statements and therefore have prepared the financial statements on a going concern

basis.

Dividend distributions to the shareholders are recognised in the Company’s financial statements in the year in which the dividends are approved. 

Interest income and expenses are recognised within ‘finance income’ and ‘finance costs’ respectively in the Statement of Profit and Loss and

Other Comprehensive Income using the effective interest rate method. 

Expenses include service charge costs, legal, accounting, auditing, asset management and other fees. They are recognised as expenses in the

Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income in the year in which they are incurred (on an accruals basis).

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates

(the "functional currency"). The financial statements are presented in Pound Sterling ("£"), which is the functional currency and the

presentational currency of the Company. 

Therefore, the Directors consider that the Company will continue to generate positive cash flows from its operating activities on its own account

for the foreseeable future bearing in mind the assets of the Company. 

The Company continues to have a high rental collection percentage, with rent collected being consistently over 95% for the last 4 quarters. This 

is mainly due to the fact that 97% of the Company's rental income is derived from office tenants, with only 3% derived from retail units.

The Directors have also undertaken specific stress tests to consider all plausible downside scenarios which could impact rental income for the next 

12 months. One scenario tested nil rental income received from the retail tenant for the period, with only rental income received from office

tenants. In this scenario, the Company will still be able to meet all of its liabilities as they fall due, including making quarterly shareholder loan

interest payments and quarterly tax instalment payments. Hence, the Company will remain in a positive cashflow position for the next 12 months. 

When considering a severe but plausible downside scenario, in addition to the assumption of nil rental income received from the retail tenant for

the period, the Company also added the assumption of only 35% of rent collected from office tenants. Again, in this scenario, the Company will

be able to meet all its liabilities as they fall due and remains in a positive cashflow position for the next 12 months. As such, the Directors are

satisfied that the Company will remain a going concern even if such unlikely downside scenarios were to occur. However, as the UK economy

continues to recover in 2021 alongside the successful roll-out of vaccinations by the UK Government, the Directors believe the risk of occurrence

of both scenarios stress tested above to be very low.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of

monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive

Income for the year.

Revenue includes rental income from properties. Rental income from operating leases is recognised in revenue on a straight-line basis over the

lease term. When the Company provides incentives to its tenants, the cost of the incentives are recognised over the lease term, on a straight-line

basis, as a reduction of rental income. 

Service charges and other recoveries are recognised as income when the related services are provided to the extent the costs are recoverable from

tenants.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

2. Accounting policies (continued)

Investment property

Lease incentives

Headlease

Cash and cash equivalents

Loans

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other payables

Share capital 

Taxation

As required by IAS 12 “Income taxes” a provision has been made for the temporary difference arising on the capital allowances used in the year.

To establish the investment property's fair value, two external valuations are performed with the lower value adopted.

The headlease on investment property has been recognised as a finance lease liability equal to the lower of fair value and the present value of the

minimum lease payments at inception of the lease. 

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge is

allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and deposits repayable on demand, less overdrafts payable on demand.

All loans are accounted for on initial recognition at fair value less directly attributable transaction costs. After initial recognition, the loans are

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Trade and other receivables consist of trade receivables from tenants and cash held by the property manager on behalf of the Company. Trade

receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised costs, less provision for impairment.

Receivables are discounted where the time value of money is material. The Company adopts the general approach to recognise expected credit

loss on trade and other receivables by assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition and determining if a

loss allowance needs to be recognised. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or

financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The amount of

the provision is the difference between the asset's carrying value and the present value of the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the

original effective interest rate. Trade receivables are materially equal to their fair value.

Trade and other payables consist of rent received in advance, VAT payable, withholding tax payable and other accrued expenses. Trade payables

are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. 

Shares are classified as equity when there is no obligation to transfer cash or other assets. 

In the event that lease incentives are paid to enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as an asset. The aggregate benefit of the

incentives is recognised as a reduction in the rental income on a straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis is more representative

of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Investment property comprise property which is held for long term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both in accordance with IAS 40

‘Investment Property’. The investment property is shown at fair value at the year end with fair value movement posted through the Statement of

Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income. The carrying amount of leasehold property is increased by an amount equivalent to the

carrying amount of any headlease obligations accounted for as a finance lease.

Subsequent costs are included in the investment property’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated

with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the

Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income during the financial year in which they are incurred.

The investment property is not depreciated.

The Company is a UK tax resident for the year ended 31 December 2020, as up until the 15 January 2015 the central management and control of

the Company was in the UK and must remain a UK tax resident for at least two years proceeding. Therefore the Company is taxed under UK tax

law at the Company standard rate of 19%.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

3. Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

• credit risk

• liquidity risk

• market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk)

Principal financial instruments

• Trade and other receivables 

• Cash and cash equivalents

• Trade and other payables

• Shareholder loan payable

Credit risk

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

£ £

Head rent deposit 275,000 275,000

Trade and other receivables 1,046,199 2,160,229

Cash and cash equivalents 3,537,016 4,491,722

4,858,215 6,926,951

Due less than 3 

months

Due between 4 

and 6 months

Due between 7 

and 12 months

Due over 12 

months Total

£ £ £ £ £

Rent receivable                44,340                         -                         -                         -                  44,340 

Provision for doubtful debts                       -                           -                         -                         -   -                        
               44,340                         -                         -                         -                  44,340 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual

obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from tenants and cash and cash equivalents held at banks.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk by class of financial asset as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 is as follows:

The Company has policies in place to ensure that rental contracts are entered into only with lessees with an appropriate credit history.

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 approximates the carrying value. As at 31 December

2020, cash balances were held with Royal Bank of Scotland International Limited (31 December 2019: Royal Bank of Scotland International

Limited). Refer to note 13 for credit ratings of these institutions.

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

Vistra Fund Services Limited who provide administration services to the Company and Vistra Secretaries Limited who provide secretarial

services to the Company, have their own business risk assessment which the Directors utilise for the purposes of the Company. These policies

are described below.

The Directors of the Company review and agree policies for managing its risk exposure. The primary objectives of the financial risk

management function are to establish appropriate risk limits, and then ensure that exposure to risks stays within these limits. The Company’s

financial assets and financial liabilities comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and trade and other payables that arise

directly from its operations. 

The principal financial instruments used by the Company, from which financial instrument risk arises, are as follows:

As at 31 December 2020, rent receivable of £44,340 is included in Trade and other receivables shown above and the aging and impairment of

rent receivable are as follows:

The Company's credit risk position is monitored and reviewed regularly by the Directors.
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3. Financial risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk

31 December 2020

Due less than 1 

year

Due between 1 

and 3 years

Due between 3 

and 5 years Total

£ £ £ £

Liabilities

Accruals and other payables               903,239                       -                         -                903,239 

Shareholder loan payable - principal                         -   - 52,830,375         52,830,375 

Shareholder loan payable - interest            1,462,374           2,852,840           1,481,132           5,796,346 
           2,365,613           2,852,840         54,311,507         59,529,960 

31 December 2019

Due less than 1 

year

Due between 1 

and 3 years

Due between 3 

and 5 years Total

£ £ £ £

Liabilities

Accruals and other payables               863,537                       -                         -                863,537 

Shareholder loan payable - principal          57,080,375                       -                         -           57,080,375 

Shareholder loan payable - interest               755,993                       -                         -                755,993 
         58,699,905                       -                         -           58,699,905 

Market risk

a) Foreign exchange risk

b) Price risk

c) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company’s approach to

managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal

and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s position. 

IFRS 7 requires disclosure of sensitivity analysis for each type of market risk to which the entity is exposed at the reporting date showing how

profit or loss and equity would have been affected by changing the relevant risk variables that were reasonably possible at that date. 

As discussed below, the Company does not have significant exposure to price risk or cash flow and fair value interest rate risk and therefore no

sensitivity analysis for those risks has been disclosed.

The Company is not exposed to foreign currency risk since all of its financial assets and liabilities are denominated in pound sterling, which is

the functional and presentation currency of the Company.

The Company is exposed to property price and property rental risk which are not financial instruments. Further, the Company is also exposed to

future valuation risk due to the COVID-19 pandemic and uncertainties of how the British economy and financial markets will be affected by

Brexit. The Company is not exposed to market risk with respect to financial instruments as it does not hold any marketable equity securities.

The Company, through its active management and review processes, will seek to minimise these risks wherever possible.

The Company is not exposed to cash flow risk in relation to interest payable on the shareholder loan amounting to £52,830,375 with Fubon,

given that the loan carries a fixed interest rate as described in note 15. The loan was repayable on 15 January 2020. On 9 January 2020, the

Company has entered into a facility agreement with Fubon Life Insurance Company Limited to renew the existing shareholder loan. Per the

updated facility agreement effective from 15 January 2020, the shareholder loan is now repayable on 14 January 2025 and bears a fixed interest

rate of 2.7% per annum. There is a minimal exposure to fair value interest rate risk in relation to the shareholder loan however the Directors

believe that this risk is low and therefore no sensitivity analysis for this risk has been disclosed.

The Company’s liquidity position is monitored and reviewed on a quarterly basis by the Directors. The amounts disclosed in the below table are

the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

The maturity analysis of financial instruments at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 are as follows:

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. The

Company’s market risk arises from open positions in interest bearing assets and liabilities, to the extent that these are exposed to general and

specific market movements. 

All trade and other receivables and payables are interest-free and have settlement dates within one year. 
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3. Financial risk management (continued)

Capital management 

4. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Fair value of investment properties

5. Revenue
Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

£ £

Rental income 5,652,351         5,976,768         

Service charge income 1,575,113         1,573,725         

Tenant recoverable income 21,145              -                    

7,248,609         7,550,493         

6. Property operating expenses
Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

£ £

Service charge expenses (1,575,113) (1,573,725)

Tenant recoverable expenses (21,145) -                        

Ground rent (273,157) (302,784)

Valuation fees (29,600) (30,500)

Letting and landlord costs 8,336                (4,143)

Legal fees -                        (575)

Non-recoverable insurance (1,033) (1,107)

Lift and other expenses -                        (5,822)

(1,891,712) (1,918,656)

7. Administrative expenses
Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

£ £

Asset management fees (218,000) (218,000)

Audit fees (13,990) (13,750)

Legal and professional fees     (84,192) (88,764)

Other fees (700) (700)

Bank charges (928) (865)

(317,810) (322,079)

The Company considers its capital to comprise its ordinary share capital and accumulated retained earnings. Refer to note 14.

The Directors’ objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in the short and long term

in order to provide returns for the shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders. There are no external regulatory requirements imposed on the

Company with regards to capital management.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that

are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 

In determining the fair value of investment properties under IAS 40 there is a degree of uncertainty and judgement involved. The Company uses

two external professional valuers to determine relevant amounts. The Directors have reviewed the valuations and assumptions applied and have

concluded that they are reasonable, but elect to adopt the lower valuation in the financial statements.

The Directors believe that the chosen valuation techniques and assumptions used are appropriate. In determining a range of reasonably possible

assumptions for sensitivity disclosures in note 11, the Directors consider the assumptions in both external valuations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

8. Net finance cost
Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

£ £

Finance cost

Interest on shareholder loan (1,549,972) (2,636,582)

Headlease finance cost (239,184) (239,220)

(1,789,156) (2,875,802)

Finance income

Interest income 6,123                489                   

Net finance cost (1,783,033) (2,875,313)

9. Income tax expense

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

£ £

Current income tax

Current income tax charge (754,477) (485,998)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax expense (119,240) (127,902)

Adjustment to deferred tax (111,592)                         - 

Income tax expense (985,309) (613,900)

Income tax reconciliation Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

£ £

Profit before tax           3,855,414           3,313,905 

Taxation at 19% (31 December 2019: 19%) (732,529) (629,642)

Effect of:

Disallowed interest (255,066) (166,402)

Impact of change in the tax rate on temporary differences (111,592)                15,047 

Movement in fair value on investment property              113,878              167,097 

Total tax charge (985,309) (613,900)

The Company is taxed under UK tax law at the Company standard rate of 19% (31 December 2019: 19%) on the taxable income of the

Company. There is an income tax charge of £754,477 (31 December 2019: £485,998) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The deferred tax liability is on the temporary differences arising on the capital allowances used in the year at the Company standard rate of 19%

(31 December 2019: 17%) with an adjustment being put through during the year to increase the deferred tax previously calculated at the reduced

rate. Recognition of the deferred tax liability on temporary differences is a requirement for the year ended 31 December 2020 under IAS 12

"Income taxes".

The major components of income tax expense for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019:

A reconciliation between the profit before tax and the tax position for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019:

As at 31 December 2020, the tax base of the investment property of £134,000,000, being its historical base cost at acquisition, exceeds its year-

end fair value of £128,000,000 therefore there is a temporary difference of £6,000,000. However, as there is no certainty of future profits, the

Company has assessed that it will not recognise any deferred tax asset on this temporary difference. There are no unused tax losses in the

Company as at 31 December 2020.
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9. Income tax expense (continued)

Deferred tax liability

2020 2020 2019 2019

£ £ £ £

Deferred tax liabilities brought forward (948,532)                         - (820,630)                         - 

(230,832) (230,832) (127,902) (127,902)

(1,179,364) (230,832) (948,532) (127,902)

10. Directors and employees

11. Investment property
31 December 31 December

2020 2019

Property £ £

Balance at 1 January       119,272,856       118,392,616 

Capitalised cost                         -                         - 

      119,272,856       118,392,616 

Fair value movement on investment property*              600,176              880,240 

Balance at 31 December       119,873,032       119,272,856 

Lease incentive           8,126,968           8,727,144 

Fair value of investment property at 31 December       128,000,000       128,000,000 

Head lease           5,372,919           5,373,735 

Balance at 31 December including lease incentive       133,372,919       133,373,735 

Balance at 31 December excluding lease incentive       125,245,951       124,646,591 

Fair value of investment property

• Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1).

• Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly (Level 2).

• Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (Level 3).

Information about fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)

Deferred income tax expense

The Company has no employees. Please see related party transaction note (refer to note 18) for details of corporate services fees paid to Vistra

Fund Services Limited.

The investment property consists of leasehold interest property, One Carter Lane and Two Old Change Court, London EC4V 5EN. The

investment property was acquired by the Company on 30 June 2011 for a consideration amount of £75,000,000 plus acquisition costs and

deferred consideration.

An independent valuation of the Company's investment property was performed by Knight Frank LLP to determine the fair value of the

investment property as at 31 December 2020. The revaluation was recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive

Income as 'Fair value movement on investment property'. 

On a quarterly basis, the Company engages two external, independent and qualified valuers to determine the fair value of the investment property 

and adopts the lower valuation for these financial statements. As at 31 December 2020, fair value of the investment property has been

determined by  Knight Frank LLP using Royal International Chartered Surveyors (“RICS”) valuation.

*Fair value movement on investment property includes head lease movement of £816 (2019: £780)

Deferred tax liabilities carried forward at 19% (31 December 2019: 

17%)

The different levels of fair value under IFRS 13 have been defined as follows:

The external valuation of the investment property has been carried out using the comparative investment methods and the investment property

has been classified as Level 3. The valuation is based on a collation and analysis of appropriate comparable investment transactions. Such

transactions were then applied to the investment property by taking into account the size, location, terms, covenant and other material factors. 

As per the valuation report, the investment property is located within a Prime City London office Location. The nominal equivalent rate was the

main unobservable inputs, which is derived from yield, ranging from 3.80% to 4.90%, of recent property transactions in London. The higher the

yield applied the lower the fair value of the investment property will be.

Statement of 

Financial 

Position

Statement of 

Comprehensive 

Income

Statement of 

Financial 

Position

Statement of 

Comprehensive 

Income
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11. Investment property (continued)

Key unobservable input Yield

Investment properties pledged as security

12. Trade and other receivables

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

£ £

Service charge cash held by property manager              758,388           1,011,125 

Other receivables              287,811           1,149,104 

VAT receivable                25,444                         - 

Tax receivable                49,643                         - 

          1,121,286           2,160,229 

13. Cash and cash equivalents

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

£ £

Cash and cash equivalents           3,537,016           4,491,722 

14. Called up share capital

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

£ £

Called up share capital         41,514,743         41,514,743 

15. Shareholder loan

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

£ £

Amounts due in less than one year

Accrued interest for the year                       -                590,530 

Shareholder loan from Fubon at 31 December                       -           57,080,375 

                      -           57,670,905 

Amounts falling due after more than one year

Shareholder loan from Fubon at 31 December         52,830,375                       -   

(a) The valuation would be £135,000,000 at an initial yield of 4.37%.

(b) The valuation would be £121,100,000 at an initial yield of 4.87%.

The investment property with a market value of £128,000,000 (31 December 2019: £128,000,000) has been pledged to secure the shareholder

loan received from Fubon (note 15). The investment property has been pledged as security for shareholder loan under a mortgage. The Company

is not allowed to pledge the asset as security for other borrowings or to sell them to another entity.

The fair value of trade and other receivables approximates their carrying value above. This is a level 3 valuation under IFRS 13.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand with Royal Bank of Scotland International Limited (31 December 2019: Royal Bank of Scotland

International Limited). As of 31 December 2020, the credit rating of Royal Bank of Scotland International Limited as rated by Moody's Credit

Rating Agent was Baa1 (31 December 2019: Baa2). The fair value of cash is materially equal to the carrying value.

Relationship between key unobservable input and fair value 

movement

Initial Yield 4.62%

The key unobservable input relevant to the Company is the initial yield. Note below the effect of the yield on the valuation:

The Company is authorised to issue an unlimited number of shares with no par value shares. Called up share capital comprises 41,514,743

ordinary shares issued (31 December 2019: 41,514,743 ordinary shares) at £1 (31 December 2019: £1) each which are held by Fubon life

Insurance Company Limited, including nil shares (31 December 2019: nil) issued during the year.
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15. Shareholder loan (continued)

16.  Leases

Headlease - Company as lessee

Minimum lease 

payments Interest Present value

Minimum lease 

payments Interest Present value

31 December 

2020

31 December 

2020

31 December 

2020

31 December 

2019

31 December 

2019

31 December 

2019

£ £ £ £ £ £

Within 1 year                240,000 (239,147)                      853              240,000 (239,184)                     816 

1 - 2 years                240,000 (239,108)                      892              240,000 (239,147)                     853 

2 - 3 years                240,000 (239,067)                      933              240,000 (239,108)                     892 

3 - 4 years                240,000 (239,025)                      975              240,000 (239,067)                     933 

4 - 5 years                240,000 (238,980)                   1,020              240,000 (239,025)                     975 

Beyond 5 years           29,280,000 (23,911,754)            5,368,246         29,520,000 (24,150,734)           5,369,266 

Total           30,480,000 (25,107,081)            5,372,919         30,720,000 (25,346,265)           5,373,735 

Operating leases - Company as lessor

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

£ £

Within 1 year           6,848,286           6,552,903 

1 - 2 years           6,848,219           5,926,432 

2 - 3 years           6,738,980           5,926,432 

3 - 4 years           6,670,219           5,817,194 

4 - 5 years           5,592,266           5,748,432 

Beyond 5 years         16,761,682         21,720,062 

Total         49,459,652         51,691,455 

17. Trade and other payables

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

£ £

Withholding tax payable                35,954                65,614 

Tax payable                       -                277,046 

Deferred income - rent and service charge prepaid           1,961,037           1,877,074 

VAT payable              300,508              371,523 

Service charge liability              443,235              675,550 

Accrued expenses              460,004              169,224 

Other payables                       -                  18,763 

          3,200,738           3,454,794 

The fair value of trade and other payables approximates their carrying value above. This is a level 3 valuation under IFRS 13.

The Company’s minimum lease payments under its lease of investment property are as follows:

The future aggregate minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

On 16 January 2015, the Company entered into a Loan Agreement with Fubon with a total commitment of £111,040,785 to refinance its existing

borrowings. The loan was secured, bore interest at a fixed rate of 4.56% and interest was payable in arrears on a quarterly basis. The loan was

due for repayment on 15 January 2020. On 9 January 2020, the Company has entered into a facility agreement with Fubon Life Insurance

Company Limited to renew the existing shareholder loan. Per the updated facility agreement effective from 15 January 2020, the shareholder

loan is now repayable on 14 January 2025 and bears a fixed interest rate of 2.7% per annum. 

As at 31 December 2020, an amount of £52,830,375 (31 December 2019: £57,080,375) was drawn by the Company. A loan repayment of

£4,250,000 was made on 8 September 2020. The fair value of the loan at the reporting date is £52,941,864 (31 December 2019: £57,260,870).

This is a level 2 valuation under IFRS 13.

The Company does not have external debt(s), neither is a guarantor nor provide its assets as a security for the indebtedness of others, and there is

no encumbrances on the property that the Company owns except pledging the property as collateral to secure the shareholder loan for its parent

company.

Refer also to note 11 for headlease disclosure.
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18. Related party transactions

19. Directors' remuneration

20. Contingent liabilities and unrecognised contract commitments

21. Subsequent events

22. Controlling party

The Company is a subsidiary undertaking of Fubon Financial Holding Co. Limited which is the ultimate parent company incorporated in Taiwan

with its registration No. 2881. The largest group in which the results of the Company are consolidated is that headed by Fubon Financial Holding

Co. Limited Taiwan. The consolidated financial statements of the group are available to the public and can be obtained from

http://mops.twse.com.tw/mops/web/index.

At 31 December 2020, loans from Fubon Life Insurance Company Limited amounted to £52,830,375 (31 December 2019: £57,080,375). A loan

repayment of £4,250,000 was made on 8 September 2020. During the year ended 31 December 2020, £1,549,972 (31 December 2019:

£2,636,582) was payable to the shareholder in respect of the shareholder loan interest with £nil unpaid at year end (31 December 2019:

£590,530).

Patrizia UK Limited acts as asset manager for the Company and the asset management fees for the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to

£218,000 (31 December 2019: £218,000). The amount unpaid as at 31 December 2020 was £54,500 (31 December 2019: £nil).

Vistra Fund Services Limited acts as administrator to the Company and Vistra Secretaries Limited acts as secretary to the Company. Vistra Fund

Services Limited also provides directors to the Company. Administration fees for the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to £26,000 (31

December 2019: £26,000). The amount unpaid as at 31 December 2020 was £nil (31 December 2019: £nil).

All of the above transactions are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions.

No emoluments were paid to the Directors during the year ended 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: nil).

There were no contingent liabilities and unrecognised contract commitments for the Company and its operations as at 31 December 2020 (31

December 2019: none). Refer to note 11 for details of "Investment property pledged as security" for the shareholder loan from Fubon Life

Insurance Company Limited.

There have been no significant events after the reporting date and up to the date of signing these financial statements that require disclosure.

The ultimate controlling party is Fubon Financial Holding Co. Limited.



【附件二】 

案名: 英國倫敦 Bow Bells House 

一、基本資料 
新設日期 2015 年 1 月 22 日 
交割日期 2015 年 2 月 17 日 
公司名稱 Bow Bells House (Jersey) Limited 
不動產所在地 1 Bread Street London, EC4M 9BE，倫敦、英國 
土地面積 29,142 sqft (約 818 坪) 
建物面積 161,437sqft (約 4,537 坪) 
建物樓層 LG~7F 
使用情形 辦公室 
 
二、租金收益率檢核 
                                租金收益率檢核                          £ , %                
契約年租金                        £9,528,429 
最新不動產估值(2020 年 12 月 31 日)     £176,100,000 
以估值計算收益率   5.41% 
估值收益率是否符合當地市場行情      是 
註：大樓出租率 98.92%(因 Vodafone 於 2020/12/16 退租)，估值收益率約 5.41%，因當地零

售業受疫情衝擊影響致估值下降，故估值收益率略高於當地商辦大樓買賣成交市場行情

3.75%~4.9%。 
 
三、承租概況 

 

樓層 使用類型 租賃面積 年租金 租金起算日 租約到期日 剩餘租期 (年)
7F 13,834 sqft
6F 15,271 sqft
5F 15,264 sqft
4F 24,247 sqft
3F 24,505 sqft £1,284,800
2F 24,381 sqft £1,266,600
1F 21,223 sqft £1,103,000
GF 零售 1,697 sqft £246,750 17 Feb 2015 16 Dec 2020 0.00

GF, LGF 零售 3,083 sqft £279,750 17 Feb 2015 17 May 2022 1.38
GF, LGF 零售 2,003 sqft £187,000 17 Feb 2015 23 Feb 2022 1.15
GF, LGF 零售 3,093 sqft £280,000 9 Nov 2018 8 Aug 2033 12.61

GF 零售/餐廳 3,747 sqft £176,000 17 Feb 2015 7 Mar 2023 2.18
GF 零售/餐廳 5,295 sqft £247,000 17 Feb 2015 5 Jun 2033 12.44

1,166 sqft 計入上述租金 17 Feb 2015 11 Sep 2024 3.70
1,841 sqft £27,615 17 Feb 2015 9 Aug 2024 3.61
787 sqft 計入上述租金 17 Feb 2015 9 Aug 2024 3.61

B1 汽車6輛 計入上述租金 17 Feb 2015 11 Sep 2024 3.70
B1 汽車6輛 計入上述租金 17 Feb 2015 9 Aug 2024 3.61
總計 161,437 sqft £9,528,429 3.92

£1,873,220

£2,556,694
17 Feb 2015

停車場

儲藏室LGF

11 Sep 2024

Everything Everywhere
Greggs

TSB Bank
Burger & Lobster Restaurant Group

Vodaphone*

17 Feb 2015 9 Aug 2024 3.61辦公室
Aberdeen Asset Management

(下稱Aberdeen)

承租戶

The Governor and Company of the Bank of Ireland
(下稱BOI) 3.70辦公室

      Bow Bells House 樓層使用及面積表

(總車位數12輛)

Ping Pong
BOI

Aberdeen

BOI
Aberdeen
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Directors' Report

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Results

The results for the year are set out on page 6. 

Going concern

COVID-19 pandemic

Secretary

Disclosure of information to auditor

Subsequent events

Independent Auditor

By order of the Board

Marc Harris

Director

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements of Bow Bells House (Jersey) Limited (the "Company") for the year ended 31

December 2020. 

Principal activities

The Company was incorporated on 22 January 2015 as a private company under the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991, with registered number 117610. The

registered office of the Company is 4th Floor, St Paul's Gate, 22 - 24 New Street, St Helier, Jersey, JE1 4TR, Channel Islands.

The Company has been established as a special purpose vehicle by Fubon Life Insurance Company Limited ("Fubon") to acquire a freehold property,

Bow Bells House, 1 Bread Street, London EC4 (the "Property"). The Company has financed its purchase through a loan from Fubon Life Insurance Co.

Limited and funds received by issuance of ordinary share capital. The principal activity of the Company is to receive rental income from the underlying

property that it owns on a freehold basis.

Based on the cash flow forecasts for the 12 months period from the signing of the Statement of Financial Position, the Company has adequate cash

resources to meet its requirements. Therefore the Directors have prepared the Company's financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Directors consider that the Company will continue to generate positive cash flows from its operating activities on its own account for the foreseeable

future bearing in mind the assets of the Company. On 9 January 2020, the Company has entered into a facility agreement with Fubon Life Insurance

Company Limited to renew the existing shareholder loan. Per the updated facility agreement effective from 11 February 2020, the shareholder loan is

now repayable on 10 February 2025 and bears a fixed interest rate of 3.97% per annum. 

Since the announcement of the COVID-19 global pandemic by the World Health Organisation on 11 March 2020, there has been significant market

volatility and economic disruption. The Directors have considered the impact of COVID-19 on the going concern assumption of the Company. The

Company has a net current assets position of £1,220,051 as at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: net current liabilities of £141,481,637). Rental

income has been received during the year ended 31 December 2020 and the Company is expected to generate further rental income for the foreseeable

future. The Directors are closely monitoring the evolution of this pandemic, including how it may affect the economy and general population. The

Directors have concluded that the impact of COVID-19 does not represent a material uncertainty in relation to the Company’s ability to continue as a

going concern through to the date of issuance of these financial statements.

On 18 March 2021, Paul Antony Le Marquand has resigned as a director of the Company and Smoden Chimbalu has been appointed as a director of the

Company effective from this date.

The Company' secretary during the year and up to the date on which the financial statements were approved was Vistra Secretaries Limited.

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors’ Report confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there is no relevant audit

information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware; and each Director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a Director to make

himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditor is aware of that information.

A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG LLP will be proposed in the upcoming board meeting.

Date: 18 March 2021
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Statement of Directors' responsibilities in respect of the Directors' Report and the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable, relevant and reliable;  

• assess the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and  

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Company financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs

of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to:  

• state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial

statements;  

• use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but

to do so.

The Directors are responsible for keeping sufficient accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the

Company and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. They are responsible for such

internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Company and to prevent

and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International

Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU. 
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Opinion

Basis for opinion

Going concern

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (“fraud risks”) we assessed events or conditions that could indicate an incentive or pressure to

commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk assessment procedures included: 

• Enquiring of the Directors and management of whether they are aware of fraud and of the Company’s high-level policies and procedures to prevent and

detect fraud;

• Reading Board minutes;

• Using analytical procedures to identify any usual or unexpected relationships; 

• Considering performance targets and incentives for management.

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications of fraud throughout the audit.

As required by auditing standards, we perform procedures to address the risk of management override of controls, in particular the risk that management

may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting entries and the risk of bias in accounting estimates and judgements such as investment property

valuations.

We did not identify any additional fraud risks.

On this audit we do not believe there is a fraud risk related to revenue recognition because the Company’s income primarily arises from operating lease

contracts with fixed, or highly predictable, periodic payments, the basis of all being contractual agreements.

We also performed procedures including: 

• identifying journal entries to test based on risk criteria and comparing the identified entries to supporting documentation. These included testing all

material and high-risk post-closing journal entries.

Our procedures to detect fraud in the investment property valuations included:

• the use of our specialist valuers to challenge the methods used in the valuation;

• obtaining both confirmatory and non-confirmatory evidence to assess of the key inputs into the valuations.

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the financial statements from our general

commercial and sector experience and through discussion with the Directors (as required by auditing standards) and discussed with the Directors the

policies and procedures regarding compliance with laws and regulations.   

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications of non-compliance throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the Company is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements including financial reporting legislation (including

related companies’ legislation), and taxation legislation. We assessed the extent of compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our procedures

on the related financial statement items.  

We have audited the financial statements of Bow Bells House (Jersey) Limited ("the Company") for the year ended 31 December 2020 which comprise

the Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the

Statement of Cash Flows and the related notes, including the accounting policies in note 2. 

In our opinion the financial statements: 

• give a true and fair view, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU of the state of Company's affairs as at 31

December 2020 and of its loss for the year then ended; and

• have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”) and applicable law. Our responsibilities are

described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the Company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements

including FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion.  

The Directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend to liquidate the Company or to cease its operations,

and as they have concluded that the Company’s financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material

uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over its ability to continue as a going concern for at least a year from the date of approval of the

financial statements (“the going concern period”).  

In our evaluation of the Directors’ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the Company’s business model and analysed how those risks might

affect the Company’s financial resources or ability to continue operations over the going concern period.   

Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations – ability to detect

Our conclusions based on this work:

• we consider that the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate;

• we have not identified, and concur with the Directors’ assessment that there is not, a material uncertainty related to events or conditions that,

individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for the going concern period.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that

were reasonable at the time they were made, the above conclusions are not a guarantee that the Company will continue in operation. 
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Other information

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Directors' responsibilities

Auditor’s responsibilities  

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities  

Matthew Humphrey
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP
Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London

E14 5GL

18 March 2021

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' responsibilities set out on page 3, the Directors are responsible for: the preparation of the financial

statements which give a true and fair view; such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,

matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor’s report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit

conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are

considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

the financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC’s website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.  

This report is made solely to the Company’s Members, as a body, in accordance with Article 113A of the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Our audit work

has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s Members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no

other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s

Members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

The Directors are responsible for the other information presented in the Annual Report together with the financial statements. Our opinion on the

financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.  

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our financial statements audit work, the information

therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work we have not identified

material misstatements in the other information.  

Under the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:  

• proper accounting records have not been kept by the Company; or

• proper returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

• the Company's accounts are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects. 

Secondly, the Company is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-compliance could have a material effect on

amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for instance through the imposition of fines or litigation. We identified the following areas as those

most likely to have such an effect: landlord and tenant legislation, property laws and building legislation, any property legal disputes and recognising the

nature of the Company’s activities.

Auditing standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and regulations to enquiry of the Directors and other

management and inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any. Therefore, if a breach of operational regulations is not disclosed to us or

evident from relevant correspondence, an audit will not detect that breach.

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some material misstatements in the financial

statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further removed non-

compliance with laws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited

procedures required by auditing standards would identify it.  

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. Our audit procedures are designed to detect material misstatement. We are not responsible for

preventing non-compliance or fraud and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws or regulation.
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Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2020

For the year For the year

ended ended

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

Notes £ £

Revenue 5 11,629,194 11,320,160

Property operating expenses 6 (2,104,324) (2,198,027)

Fair value movement on investment property 11 (13,890,454) (1,489,404)

Administrative expenses 7 (425,424) (440,681)

Operating (loss)/profit (4,791,008) 7,192,048

Net finance cost 8 (5,762,679) (6,560,242)

(Loss)/Profit for the year before tax (10,553,687) 631,806

Income tax expense 9 (1,536,481) (289,106)

(Loss)/Profit for the financial year (12,090,168) 342,700

Other comprehensive income - -

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (12,090,168) 342,700

All items dealt with in arriving at the total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year ended 31 December 2020 and year ended 31 December 2019 related

to continuing operations.

The accompanying notes on pages 10 to 19 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Statement of Financial Position

At 31 December 2020

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

Notes £ £

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Investment property 11 176,031,759 189,922,213

Lease incentive 11 68,241 77,787

Total non-current assets 176,100,000 190,000,000

Current assets

Trade and other receivables 12 1,671,627 624,851

Cash and cash equivalents 13 4,714,077 6,346,553

Total current assets 6,385,704 6,971,404

Total assets 182,485,704 196,971,404

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Called up share capital 14 46,172,931 46,172,931

Retained earnings (10,504,951) 1,585,217

35,667,980 47,758,148 

Current liabilities

Shareholder loan 15 - 143,400,000

Accrued interest 15 - 1,484,678

Trade and other payables 16 5,165,653 3,568,363

Total current liabilities 5,165,653 148,453,041

Non-current liabilities

Shareholder loan 15 140,700,000 -

Deferred tax liability 9 952,071 760,215

Total non-current liabilities 141,652,071 760,215

Total equity and liabilities 182,485,704 196,971,404

Marc Harris

Director

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 18 March 2021.

The accompanying notes on pages 10 to 19 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Share 
capital

Retained
 earnings

Total 
equity

£ £ £

Balance at 1 January 2019 46,172,931 1,242,517 47,415,448 

Total comprehensive income for the year - 342,700 342,700 

Balance at 31 December 2019 46,172,931 1,585,217 47,758,148 

Total comprehensive loss for the year -  (12,090,168) (12,090,168)

Balance at 31 December 2020 46,172,931 (10,504,951) 35,667,980 

The accompanying notes on pages 10 to 19 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2020

For the year For the year

ended ended

31 December 31 December

Notes 2020 2019

£ £

Cash flows from operating activities

(Loss)/Profit after tax (12,090,168) 342,700 

Adjustments to reconcile profit after tax to net cash flows

Income tax expense 9 1,536,481 289,106 

Fair value movement in investment property 11 13,890,454 1,489,404 

Financing costs 8 5,770,487 6,565,820 

Lease incentives 9,546 10,596 

Working capital adjustments

(Increase)/Decrease in receivables (1,046,776) 82,992 

Increase/(Decrease) in payables 508,558 (21,137)

Net cash from operating activities 8,578,582 8,759,481 

Tax paid (231,722) (225,416)

Net cash inflow from operating activities 8,346,860 8,534,065

Cash flows from financing activities

Shareholder loan repaid 15 (2,700,000) (1,700,000)

Interest paid (7,279,336) (5,083,098)

Net cash used in financing actvities (9,979,336) (6,783,098)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,632,476) 1,750,967

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 6,346,553 4,595,586

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 13 4,714,077 6,346,553

The accompanying notes on pages 10 to 19 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020

1. Organisation and business activity

2. Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

(b) New and amended standards issued, not yet effective and not early adopted

Going concern

The Directors do not expect that the adoption of the Standards and Interpretations listed above will have a material impact on the financial statements

of the Company in future periods. 

The Company’s business activities are set out in the ‘Principal activities’ section of the Directors' Report on page 2.

The Company made a loss after tax of £12,090,168 for the year ended 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: profit after tax of £342,700) and has

positive net assets of £35,667,980 (31 December 2019: £47,758,148). The loss for the year ended 31 December 2020 is due to a decrease in the fair

value of the investment property of £13,890,454.

Revenue is secured through property leases which have unexpired terms ranging from 2 to 13 years.

On 9 January 2020, the Company has entered into a facility agreement with Fubon Life Insurance Company Limited ("Fubon") to renew the existing

shareholder loan. Per the updated facility agreement effective from 11 February 2020, the shareholder loan is now repayable on 10 February 2025

and bears a fixed interest rate of 3.97% per annum.

Due to the economic disruptions caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, a small number of retail tenants have been unable to make their quarterly rent

payments. The Company is currently in negotiation with these tenants to discuss possible rent concessions but as at the date of approval of the

financial statements, no formal agreements have been concluded with these tenants.

On 8 September 2020, a loan repayment of £2,700,000 was made by the Company to Fubon as the Directors assess that the Company has excess cash

after meeting its obligations and therefore is in a position to make a partial loan repayment to reduce the outstanding balance of its shareholder loan.

The Directors will continue to closely monitor the liquidity of the Company going forward.

As these tenants represent only 5% of the total rental income of the Company, the Directors assess that the Company will still be able to generate

positive cash flows and meet its liabilities even if no rental income will be received in the next 12 months from these retail tenants.

All new and amended accounting standards which have become effective for the current year have been adopted but have had no material effect on

the reported performance, financial position or disclosures of the Company, therefore these standards have not been listed separately.

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations which have not been applied in these financial

statements were in issue but not yet effective and have not been adopted by the EU:

- Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 - Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 (effective 1 January 2021)

- Reference to the Conceptual Framework - Amendments to IFRS 3 (effective 1 January 2022)

- IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (effective 1 January 2023)

- Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current - Amendments to IAS 1 (effective 1 January 2023)

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement requirements of the International Financial

Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") and as adopted by the EU and the Companies

(Jersey) Law 1991. 

These financial statements have been prepared under the historic cost convention except for investment property that is stated at its fair value. 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS as adopted by the EU requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also

requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. Changes in assumptions may have a

significant impact on the financial statements in the year the assumptions changed. The Directors believe that the underlying assumptions are

appropriate. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the

financial statements, are disclosed in note 4.  

Changes in accounting policy and adoption of new accounting standards

(a) New and amended standards and interpretations

The financial statements of Bow Bells House (Jersey) Limited (the "Company") for the year ended 31 December 2020 were authorised for issue in

accordance with a resolution of Directors on 18 March 2021.

The Company was incorporated on 22 January 2015 as a private company under the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991, with registered number 117610.

The registered office of the Company is 4th Floor, St Paul's Gate, 22 - 24 New Street, St Helier, Jersey, JE1 4TR, Channel Islands.

The Company has been established as a special purpose vehicle by Fubon Life Insurance Company Limited ("Fubon") to acquire a freehold property,

Bow Bells House, 1 Bread Street, London EC4 (the "Property"). The Company has financed its purchase through a loan from Fubon and funds

received by issuance of ordinary share capital. The principal activity of the Company is to receive rental income from the underlying property that it

owns on a freehold basis.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

2. Accounting policies (continued)

Going concern (continued)

Foreign currency transactions

Revenue recognition

Dividends

Interest

Expenses

Investment property

The investment property is not depreciated.

To establish the investment property's fair value, two external valuations are performed with the lower value adopted.

Service charges and other recoveries are recognised as income when the related services are provided to the extent the costs are recoverable from

tenants.

Dividend distributions to the shareholders are recognised in the Company’s financial statements in the year in which the dividends are approved. 

Interest income and expenses are recognised within ‘finance income’ and ‘finance costs’ respectively in the Statement of Profit and Loss and Other

Comprehensive Income using the effective interest rate method. 

Expenses include service charge costs, legal, accounting, auditing, asset management and other fees. They are recognised as expenses in the

Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income in the year in which they are incurred (on an accruals basis).

Investment property comprises property that is held for long term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both in accordance with IAS 40

‘Investment Property.’ The investment property is shown at fair value at the year end with fair value movement posted through the Statement of

Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

Subsequent costs are included in the investment property’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with

the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement

of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income during the financial year in which they are incurred.

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the subsidiaries operate

(the "functional currency"). The financial statements are presented in Pound Sterling ("£"), which is the functional and presentational currency of the

Company. 

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign

exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets

and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the year.

Revenue includes rental income from properties. Rental income from operating leases is recognised in revenue on a straight line basis over the lease

term. When the Company provides incentives to its tenants, the cost of the incentives are recognised over the lease term, on a straight line basis, as a

reduction of rental income. 

Consequently, the Directors are confident that the Company will have sufficient funds to continue to meet its liabilities as they fall due for at least 12

months from the date of approval of the financial statements and therefore have prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Company continues to have a high rental collection percentage, with rent collected being consistently over 90% for the last 4 quarters. This is

mainly due to the fact that 87% of the Company's rental income is derived from office tenants, with only 13% derived from retail units. Out of the

rental income from retail units, only 7% relates to food & beverage ("F&B") tenants, with F&B being one of the industries most affected by the

COVID-19 pandemic and the lockdowns imposed by the UK Government throughout the year. 

The Directors have also undertaken specific stress tests to consider all plausible downside scenarios which could impact rental income for the next 12

months. One scenario tested nil rental income received from all retail unit tenants for the period, with only rental income received from office

tenants. In this scenario, the Company will still be able to meet all of its liabilities as they fall due, including making quarterly shareholder loan

interest payments and quarterly tax instalment payments. Hence, the Company will remain in a positive cashflow position for the next 12 months. 

When considering a severe but plausible downside scenario, in addition to the assumption of nil rental income received from all retail unit tenants for

the period, the Company also added the assumption of only 85% of rent collected from office tenants. Again, in this scenario, the Company will be

able to meet all its liabilities as they fall due and remains in a positive cashflow position for the next 12 months. As such, the Directors are satisfied

that the Company will remain a going concern even if such unlikely downside scenarios were to occur. However, as the UK economy continues to

recover in 2021 alongside the successful roll-out of vaccinations by the UK Government, the Directors believe the risk of occurrence of both

scenarios stress tested above to be very low.

Therefore, the Directors consider that the Company will continue to generate positive cash flows from its operating activities on its own account for

the foreseeable future bearing in mind the assets of the Company. 



BOW BELLS HOUSE (JERSEY) LIMITED

Page 12

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

2. Accounting policies (continued)

Lease incentives

Cash and cash equivalents

Loans

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other payables

Share capital 

Taxation

3. Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

• credit risk

• liquidity risk

• market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk)

Principal financial instruments

• Trade and other receivables 

• Cash and cash equivalents

• Trade and other payables

• Shareholder loan payable

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations,

and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from tenants and cash and cash equivalents held at banks.

The Directors of the Company review and agree policies for managing its risk exposure. The primary objectives of the financial risk management

function are to establish appropriate risk limits, and then ensure that exposure to risks stays within these limits. The Company’s financial assets and

financial liabilities comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and trade and other payables that arise directly from its

operations. 

The principal financial instruments used by the Company, from which financial instrument risk arises, are as follows:

Shares are classified as equity when there is no obligation to transfer cash or other assets. 

The Company has been granted a zero rate of Jersey corporate tax which has been introduced as from 1 January 2009. Under UK tax law the

Company is taxed under the Non-Resident Landlord ("NRL") Scheme on taxable profits arising from their UK real estate investment at the basic rate

income tax of 20%. However, as from 6 April 2020, all NRLs are subjected to the UK corporation tax regime therefore taxable profits are now taxed

at corporation tax rate of 19%. The Company will also be subjected to the Corporate Income Restriction ("CIR") rules under the UK corporation tax

regime and any realised gains on investment property will be subjected to UK corporation tax at the same rate of 19%.

As required by IAS 12 “Income taxes” a provision has been made for the temporary difference arising on the capital allowances used in the year. 

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

Vistra Fund Services Limited who provide administration services to the Company and Vistra Secretaries Limited who provide secretarial services to

the Company, have their own business risk assessment which the Directors utilise for the purposes of the Company. These policies are described

below.

In the event that lease incentives are paid to enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as an asset. The aggregate benefit of the

incentives is recognised as a reduction in the rental income on a straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis is more representative of

the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and deposits repayable on demand, less overdrafts payable on demand.

All loans are accounted for on initial recognition at fair value less directly attributable transaction costs. After initial recognition, the loans are

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Trade and other receivables consist of trade receivables from tenants and cash held by the property manager on behalf of the Company. Trade

receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised costs, less provision for impairment.

Receivables are discounted where the time value of money is material. The Company adopts the general approach to recognise expected credit loss

on trade and other receivables by assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition and determining if a loss

allowance needs to be recognised. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial

reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is

the difference between the asset's carrying value and the present value of the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest

rate. Trade receivables are materially equal to their fair value.

Trade and other payables consist of rent received in advance, VAT payable, withholding and income tax payable and other accrued expenses. Trade

payables are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

3. Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

£ £

Trade and other receivables 1,671,627 624,851

Cash and cash equivalents 4,714,077 6,346,553
6,385,704 6,971,404

Due less than 3 
months

Due between 4 
and 6 months

Due between 7 
and 12 months

Due over 12 
months Total

£ £ £ £ £

            213,760                 126,900                 319,655                           -                   660,315 

                      -   (2,538) (31,965)                           -   (34,503)
            213,760                 124,362                 287,690                           -                   625,812 

Liquidity risk

31 December 2020

Due less than 1 
year

Due between 1 
and 3 years

Due between 3 
and 5 years Total

£ £ £ £

Liabilities

Accruals                 740,188                           -                             -                   740,188 

Shareholder loan payable - principal                           -                             -            140,700,000          140,700,000 

Shareholder loan payable - interest              5,726,580            11,171,577              6,213,233            23,111,390 
             6,466,768            11,171,577          146,913,233          164,551,578 

31 December 2019

Due less than 1 
year

Due between 1 
and 3 years

Due between 3 
and 5 years Total

£ £ £ £

Liabilities

Accruals                 325,833                           -                             -                   325,833 

Shareholder loan payable - principal          143,400,000                           -                             -            143,400,000 

Shareholder loan payable - interest              2,384,808                           -                             -                2,384,808 
         146,110,641                           -                             -            146,110,641 

Market risk

The maturity analysis of financial instruments at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 are as follows:

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. The

Company’s market risk arises from open positions in interest bearing assets and liabilities, to the extent that these are exposed to general and specific

market movements. 

IFRS 7 requires disclosure of sensitivity analysis for each type of market risk to which the entity is exposed at the report date showing how profit or

loss and equity would have been affected by changing the relevant risk variables that were reasonably possible at that date. 

As discussed below, the Company does not have significant exposure to price risk or cash flow and fair value interest rate risk and therefore no

sensitivity analysis for those risks has been disclosed.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk by class of financial asset as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 is as follows:

The Company has policies in place to ensure that rental contracts are entered into only with lessees with an appropriate credit history.

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 approximates the carrying value. As at 31 December 2020,

cash balances was held with Royal Bank of Scotland International Limited (31 December 2019: Royal Bank of Scotland International Limited). Refer

to note 13 for credit ratings of these institutions.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company’s approach to managing

liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed

conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s position. 

The Company’s liquidity position is monitored and reviewed on a quarterly basis by the Directors. The amounts disclosed in the below table are the

contractual undiscounted cash flows.

As at 31 December 2020, rent receivable of £625,812 is included in Trade and other receivables shown above and the aging and impairment of rent

receivable are as follows:

Rent receivable

Provision for doubtful debts

The Company's credit risk position is monitored and reviewed regularly by the Directors. 
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

3. Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk (continued)

a) Foreign exchange risk

b) Price risk

c) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Capital management 

4. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Fair value of investment properties

5. Revenue Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

£ £

Rental income              9,716,053              9,178,119 

Service charge income              1,814,284              2,142,041 

Tenant recoverable income                   98,857                             - 

           11,629,194            11,320,160 

6. Property operating expenses Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

£ £

Valuation fees (29,600) (30,500)

Rent review fees (84,897)                             - 

Landlord costs (27,208)                             - 

Legal and professional fees (14,975) (25,486)

Service charge expense (1,814,284) (2,142,041)

Tenant recoverable expense (98,857)                             - 

Provision for doubtful debts (34,503)                             - 

(2,104,324) (2,198,027)

In determining the fair value of investment properties under IAS 40 there is a degree of uncertainty and judgement involved. The Company uses two

external professional valuers to determine relevant amounts. The Directors have reviewed the valuations and assumptions applied and have

concluded that they are reasonable, but elected to adopt the lower valuation in the financial statements.

The Directors believe that the chosen valuation techniques and assumptions used are appropriate. In determining a range of reasonably possible

assumptions for sensitivity disclosures in Note 11, the Directors considered the assumptions in both external valuations.

The Company, through its active management and review processes, will seek to minimise these risks wherever possible.

The Company is not exposed to cash flow risk in relation to interest payable on the shareholder loan amounting to £140,700,000 with Fubon, given

that the loan carries a fixed interest rate as described in note 15. The loan was repayable on 11 February 2020. On 9 January 2020, the Company has

entered into a facility agreement with Fubon Life Insurance Company Limited to renew the existing shareholder loan. Per the updated facility

agreement effective from 11 February 2020, the shareholder loan is now repayable on 10 February 2025 and bears a fixed interest rate of 3.97% per

annum. There is a minimal exposure to fair value interest rate risk in relation to the shareholder loan however the Directors believe that this risk is

low and therefore no sensitivity analysis for this risk has been disclosed.

All trade and other receivables and payables are interest-free and have settlement dates within one year. 

The Company considers its capital to comprise its ordinary share capital and accumulated retained earnings. Refer to note 14.

The Directors’ objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in the short and long term in

order to provide returns for the shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders. There are no external regulatory requirements imposed on the

Company with regards to capital management.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are

believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 

The Company is not exposed to foreign currency risk since all of its financial assets and liabilities are denominated in pound sterling, which is the

functional and presentation currency of the Company.

The Company is exposed to property price and property rental risk which are not financial instruments. Further, the Company is also exposed to

future valuation risk due to the COVID-19 pandemic and uncertainties of how the British economy and financial markets will be affected by Brexit.

The Company is not exposed to market risk with respect to financial instruments as it does not hold any marketable equity securities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

7. Administrative expenses Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

£ £

Asset management fees (332,500) (335,125)

Audit fees (13,990) (13,750)

Legal and professional fees (77,632) (89,938)

Other expenses (1,302) (1,868)

(425,424) (440,681)

8. Net finance cost Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

£ £

Finance cost

Interest on shareholder loan (5,770,487) (6,565,820)

Finance income

Interest income 7,808                    5,578                    

(5,762,679) (6,560,242)

9. Income tax expense

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

£ £

Current income tax

In respect of the current income (1,344,625) (295,732)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax expense (102,419) (117,965)

Adjustment to deferred tax (89,437)                 124,591 

Income tax expense (1,536,481) (289,106)

The Company has been granted a zero rate of Jersey corporate tax which has been introduced as from 1 January 2009. Under UK tax law the

Company is taxed under the Non-Resident Landlord ("NRL") Scheme on taxable profits arising from their UK real estate investment at the basic rate

income tax of 20%. However, as from 6 April 2020, all NRLs are subjected to the UK corporation tax regime therefore taxable profits are now taxed

at corporation tax rate of 19%. The Company will also be subjected to the Corporate Income Restriction ("CIR") rules under the UK corporation tax

regime and any realised gains on investment property will be subjected to UK corporation tax at the same rate of 19%.

The deferred tax liability is on the temporary differences arising on the capital allowances used in the year at the Company standard rate of 19% (31

December 2019: 17%) with an adjustment being put through during the year to increase the deferred tax previously calculated at the reduced rate.

Recognition of the deferred tax liability on temporary differences is a requirement under IAS 12 "Income taxes".

The major components of income tax expense for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the year ended 31 December 2019:

As at 31 December 2020, the tax base of the investment property of £194,219,462, being its historical base cost at acquisition, exceeds its year-end

fair value of £176,100,000 therefore there is a temporary difference of £18,119,462. However, as there is no certainty of future profits, the Company

has assessed that it will not recognise any deferred tax asset on this temporary difference. There are no unused tax losses in the Company as at 31

December 2020.
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9. Income tax expense (continued)

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

£ £

(Loss)/Profit before tax (10,553,687)                 631,806 

Taxation at 20% and as from April 2020, 19% (2019: 20%)              1,998,622 (126,361)

Effect of:

Disallowed interest (808,537)                             - 

Movement in fair value on investment property (2,639,157) (297,881)

Impact of change in the tax rate on temporary differences: 

- Current year                     1,348                   19,129 

- Prior years (89,437)                 115,026 

Non-deductible expenses                             - (135)

Non-taxable income                        680                     1,116 

Total tax charge (1,536,481) (289,106)

Statement of Statement of Statement of Statement of

Financial 
Position

Comprehensive 
Income

Financial 
Position

Comprehensive 
Income

2020 2020 2019 2019

Deferred tax liabilities for capital allowances £ £ £ £

Deferred tax liabilities brought forward (760,215) - (766,841) -

Deferred income tax expense (191,856) (191,856)                     6,626                     6,626 

(952,071) (191,856) (760,215) 6,626                    

10. Directors and employees

11. Investment properties 31 December 31 December

2020 2019

Property £ £

Balance at 1 January          189,922,213          191,411,617 

Capitalised cost                             -                             - 

         189,922,213          191,411,617 

Fair value movement on investment property (13,890,454) (1,489,404)

Balance at 31 December          176,031,759          189,922,213 

Lease incentive                   68,241                   77,787 

Fair value of investment property at 31 December          176,100,000          190,000,000 

Fair value of investment property

The different levels of fair value under IFRS 13 have been defined as follows:

• Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1).

• Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly (Level 2).

• Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (Level 3).

A reconciliation between the (loss)/profit before tax and the tax position for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019:

Income tax reconciliation

The Company has no employees. Please see related party note (refer to note 17) for details of corporate services fees paid to Vistra Fund Services

Limited.

The investment property consists of one freehold interest property located at 1 Bread Street, London EC4, United Kingdom, purchased by the

Company for consideration of £185,454,885 plus acquisition costs and deferred consideration on 12 February 2015. 

An independent valuation of the Company's investment property was performed by Knight Frank LLP to determine the fair value of the investment

property as at 31 December 2020. The revaluation was recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income as 'Fair

value movement on investment property'. 

On a quarterly basis, the Company engages two external, independent and qualified valuers to determine the fair value of the investment property and

adopts the lower valuation for these financial statements. As at 31 December 2020, fair value of the investment property recognised in these financial

statements have been determined by Knight Frank LLP using Royal International Chartered Surveyors (“RICS”) valuation.

Deferred tax liabilities carried forward at 19% (31 December 2019: 

17%)



BOW BELLS HOUSE (JERSEY) LIMITED

Page 17

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

11. Investment properties (continued)

Information about fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (level 3)

The key unobservable input relevant to Bow Bells House is the initial yield. Note below the effect of the yield on the valuation:

Key unobservable input Yield

Investment properties pledged as security

12. Trade and other receivables

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

£ £

Service charge cash held by property manager                 909,832                 582,473 

Rent receivable                 625,812                           -   

Other receivables                 135,983                   42,378 

             1,671,627                 624,851 

13. Cash and cash equivalents

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

£ £

Cash and cash equivalents              4,714,077              6,346,553 

14. Called up share capital

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

£ £

Called up share capital            46,172,931            46,172,931 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand with Royal Bank of Scotland International Limited (31 December 2019: Royal Bank of Scotland

International Limited). As at 31 December 2020, the credit rating of Royal Bank of Scotland International Limited as rated by Moody's Credit Rating

Agent was Baa1 (31 December 2019: Baa2). The fair value of cash is materially equal to the carrying value.

Pursuant to the amended and restated Memorandum of Article, the Company is authorised to issue an unlimited number of shares with no par value

shares. Called up share capital comprises 46,172,931 ordinary shares (31 December 2019: 46,172,931) issued at £1 (31 December 2019: £1) each

which are held by Fubon Life Insurance Company Limited. £46,172,931 was used to fund the purchase consideration of the investment property.

Relationship between key unobservable input and fair value movement

Initial Yield 4.89%

(a) The valuation would be £185,600,000 at an initial yield of 4.64%.

(b) The valuation would be £167,500,000 at an initial yield of 5.14%.

The investment property with a market value of £176,100,000 (31 December 2019: £190,000,000) has been pledged to secure the shareholder loan

received from Fubon Life Insurance Company Limited (note 15). The investment property has been pledged as security for shareholder loan under a

mortgage. The Company is not allowed to pledge the asset as security for other borrowings or to sell them to another entity.

The fair value of trade and other receivables approximates their carrying value above. This is a Level 3 valuation under IFRS 13.

The external valuation of the investment property has been carried out using the comparative investment method and the investment property has

been classified as Level 3. The valuation is based on a collation and analysis of appropriate comparable investment transactions. Such transactions

were then applied to the investment property by taking into account the size, location, terms, covenant and other material factors. 

As per the valuation report, the investment property is located within a prime City of London office location. The nominal equivalent rate was the

main unobservable inputs, which is derived from yield, ranging from 3.80% to 4.90%, of recent property transactions in London. The higher the yield

applied the lower the fair value of the investment property will be.



BOW BELLS HOUSE (JERSEY) LIMITED

Page 18

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

15. Shareholder loan

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

£ £

Amounts due in less than one year

Accrued interest for the year                             -              1,484,678 

Shareholder loan from Fubon Life Insurance Company Limited                             -          143,400,000 

                            -          144,884,678 

Amounts falling due after more than one year

Shareholder loan from Fubon Life Insurance Company Limited

Balance at 31 December          140,700,000                           -   

16. Trade and other payables

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

£ £

Deferred income - rent and service charges prepaid              2,487,822              2,469,752 

VAT payable                 429,664                 353,530 

Withholding tax payable                 140,792                 164,964 

Accrued expenses                 167,992                   78,014 

Service charge liability                 571,696                 235,232 

Other payables                        500                   12,587 

Tax payable              1,367,187                 254,284 

             5,165,653              3,568,363 

17. Related party transactions

The ultimate controlling party is Fubon Financial Holding Co. Limited.

The fair value of other payables approximates their carrying value above. This is a Level 3 valuation under IFRS 13.

Patrizia UK Ltd act as asset manager for the Company and the asset management fees payable during the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to

£332,500 (31 December 2019: £335,125). The amount unpaid as at 31 December 2020 was £83,125 (31 December 2019: £nil).

Vistra Fund Services Limited acts as administrator to the Company and Vistra Secretaries Limited acts as secretary to the Company. Vistra Fund

Services Limited also provides directors to the Company. Administration fees for the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to £26,000 (31

December 2019: £26,000). The amount unpaid as at 31 December 2020 was £nil (31 December 2019: £nil).

All of the above transactions are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions.

At 31 December 2020, loans from Fubon Life Insurance Company Limited amounted to £140,700,000 (31 December 2019: £143,400,000). A loan

repayment of £2,700,000 was made on 8 September 2020. During the year ended 31 December 2020, £5,770,487 (31 December 2019: £6,565,820)

was payable to the shareholder in respect of the shareholder loan interest with £nil unpaid at year end (31 December 2019: £ 1,484,678).

On 12 February 2015, the Company entered into a Loan Agreement with Fubon Life Insurance Company Limited with a total commitment of

£150,400,000. The loan was secured, bore interest at a fixed rate of 4.56% and interest was payable in arrears on a quarterly basis. The loan was due

for repayment on 11 February 2020. On 9 January 2020, the Company has entered into a facility agreement with Fubon Life Insurance Company

Limited to renew the existing shareholder loan. Per the updated facility agreement effective from 11 February 2020, the shareholder loan is now

repayable on 10 February 2025 and bears a fixed interest rate of 3.97% per annum.

As at 31 December 2020, an amount of £140,700,000 (31 December 2019: £143,400,000) was drawn by the Company. A loan repayment of

£2,700,000 was made on 8 September 2020. The fair value of the loan at the reporting date is £141,191,515 (31 December 2019: £144,091,049).

This is a level 2 valuation under IFRS 13.

The Company does not have external debt(s), neither is a guarantor nor provide its assets as a security for the indebtedness of others, and there is no

encumbrances on the property that the Company owns except pledging the property as collateral to secure the shareholder loan for its parent

company.
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18. Operating leases - Company as lessor

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

£ £

Within 1 year              9,281,679              8,909,692 

1 - 2 years              8,947,597              8,909,692 

2 - 3 years              8,670,271              8,575,610 

3 - 4 years              5,873,480              8,298,284 

4 - 5 years                 527,000              5,635,281 

Beyond 5 years              3,966,222              4,236,019 

Total            37,266,249            44,564,578 

19. Directors' remuneration

20. Contingent liabilities and unrecognised contract commitments

21. Subsequent events

22. Controlling party

No emoluments were paid to the Directors during the year ended 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: nil).

There were no contingent liabilities and unrecognised contract commitments for the Company and its operations as at 31 December 2020. Refer to

note 11 for details of "Investment property pledged as security" for the shareholder loan from Fubon Life Insurance Company Limited.

The Company is a subsidiary undertaking of Fubon Financial Holding Co. Limited, which is the ultimate parent company incorporated in Taiwan

with its registration No. 2881. The largest group in which the results of the Company are consolidated is that headed by Fubon Financial Holding Co.

Limited Taiwan. The consolidated financial statements of the group are available to the public and can be obtained from

http://mops.twse.com.tw/mops/web/index.  

The future aggregate minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

On 18 March 2021, Paul Antony Le Marquand has resigned as a director of the Company and Smoden Chimbalu has been appointed as a director of

the Company effective from this date.



【附件三】 

案名:英國倫敦 Madame Tussauds London 

一、基本資料 

SPV 新設日期 2015 年 8 月 5 日 
交易完成日期 2015 年 8 月 25 日 
公司名稱 Fubon MTL Property (Jersey) Limited 
不動產所在地 Madame Tussauds, Marylebone Road, London NW1 5LR，倫敦、英國 
土地面積 30,492 sqft (約 857 坪) 
建物面積 117,300 sqft (約 3,297 坪) 
建物樓層 B2~7F 
使用情形 蠟像館 
 

二、租金收益率檢核 

                                租金收益率檢核                 £ , %                
契約年租金 

  
£17,789,362 

最新不動產估值(2020 年 12 月 31 日)   

  
£347,000,000 

以估值計算收益率 

  
5.13% 

估值收益率是否符合當地市場行情      是 

註：目前出租率 100%，估值收益率約 5.13%，因當地觀光娛樂業受疫情衝擊影響致估值下降，故

估值收益率略高於當地商辦大樓買賣成交市場行情 2.5%~5%。 
 
三、承租概況 

      Madame Tussauds London 樓層使用及面積表 

樓層 使用類型 承租戶 租賃面積 年租金 
剩餘租期 

(年) 

7F 

蠟像館  Merlin Attractions Operations Ltd.  

2,000 sqft 

£17,789,362 21.52 

6F 9,000 sqft 

5F 6,000 sqft 

4F 22,000 sqft 

3F 7,000 sqft 

2F 20,000 sqft 

1F 17,000 sqft 

GF 18,000 sqft 

B1F 16,000 sqft 
B2F 300 sqft 
總計     117,300 sqft £17,789,362   
  













































【附件四】 

案名：比利時布魯賽爾 Ellipse Building(比利時 SPV) 

一、基本資料 
繼受日期 2016 年 1 月 15 日 
第 1 階段股權交割日期 2016 年 1 月 15 日 
第 2 階段不動產交易日期 2016 年 1 月 19 日(Ellipse Building 剩餘不動產權利) 
公司名稱 Fubon Ellipse (Belgium) S.A. 
不動產所在地 35 Boulevard Roi Albert II，布魯塞爾、比利時 
土地面積 6,610 ㎡ (約 2,000 坪) 
建物面積 53,209 ㎡ (約 16,096 坪) 
建物樓層 A 棟 GF~21F、B 棟 GF~7F、C 棟 GF~3F，地下 3 層連通 
使用情形 辦公室 
 
二、租金收益率檢核 
                                租金收益率檢核                          € , %                
契約年租金 

  
€12,811,627 

最新不動產估值(2020 年 12 月 31 日)   
  

€177,000,000 
以估值計算收益率 

  
7.24% 

估值收益率是否符合當地市場行情(註)   是 
註：大樓出租率 100%，估值收益率 7.24%，符合當地辦公大樓買賣成交市場行情 3.24%~ 

8.00%。 
 
三、承租概況 

 
 

棟別 樓層 使用類型 承租戶 租賃面積 年租金 租金起算日 租約到期日 剩餘租期(年)
A棟 B1~21F 辦公室

B棟 G~7F 辦公室

C棟 G~3F 辦公室 IBPT 5,916 m2 € 1,332,159 1 Jan 2008 31 Dec 2024 4.00
C棟 GF 零售/藥局 Bellipharma 143 m2 € 12,876 1 Jan 2016 31 Dec 2024 4.00
C棟 GF 零售/餐廳 KET 152 m2 € 15,341 1 Nov 2019 30 Jun 2028 7.50

- B2~B3F 儲藏室 IBPT 37 m2 計入上述租金 1 Jan 2008 31 Dec 2024 4.00
- B2~B3F 儲藏室 空置 130 m2

- B2~B3F 停車場 IBPT 40輛 計入上述租金 1 Jan 2008 31 Dec 2024 4.00
- B2F 停車場 KET 2輛 計入上述租金 1 Nov 2019 30 Jun 2028 7.50
- B2~B3F 停車場 空置 6輛

總計 (總車位數279輛) 53,209 m2 € 12,811,627 4.00

儲藏室
Vlaamse Gemeenschap
(Flemish Government)

Vlaamse Gemeenschap
(Flemish Government)

B2~B3F

Ellipse Building 樓層使用及面積表

1 Jan 2007

€ 11,451,251 1 Jan 2007

2,365 m2

231輛

44,466 m2

計入上述租金

31 Dec 2024 4.00

-

-

31 Dec 2024

計入上述租金 4.001 Jan 2007B2~B3F 停車場
Vlaamse Gemeenschap
(Flemish Government) 31 Dec 2024

4.00
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Rapport du commissaire à l’assemblée générale de Fubon Ellipse 
(Belgium) SA sur les comptes annuels pour l’exercice clos le 
31 décembre 2020 

Dans le cadre du contrôle légal des comptes annuels de Fubon Ellipse (Belgium) 
SA (la « Société »), nous vous présentons notre rapport du commissaire. Celui-
ci inclut notre rapport sur les comptes annuels pour l’exercice clos le 
31 décembre 2020, ainsi que les autres obligations légales et réglementaires. 
Le tout constitue un ensemble et est inséparable.  
Nous avons été nommés en tant que commissaire par l’assemblée générale du 
16 avril 2019, conformément à la proposition de l’organe d’administration. Notre 
mandat de commissaire vient à échéance à la date de l’assemblée générale 
délibérant sur les comptes annuels clôturés au 31 décembre 2021. Nous avons 
exercé le contrôle légal des comptes annuels de Fubon Ellipse (Belgium) SA 
durant 5 exercices consécutifs. 

Rapport sur les comptes annuels 
Opinion sans réserve 
Nous avons procédé au contrôle légal des comptes annuels de la Société pour 
l’exercice clos le 31 décembre 2020, établis sur la base du référentiel comptable 
applicable en Belgique. Ces comptes annuels comprennent le bilan au 
31 décembre 2020, le compte de résultats pour l’exercice clos à cette date et 
l’annexe. Le total du bilan s’élève à 135.991.421 EUR et le compte de résultats 
se solde par un bénéfice de l’exercice de 728.960 EUR. 
À notre avis, ces comptes annuels donnent une image fidèle du patrimoine et 
de la situation financière de la Société au 31 décembre 2020, ainsi que de ses 
résultats pour l’exercice clos à cette date, conformément au référentiel 
comptable applicable en Belgique. 
Fondement de l’opinion sans réserve 
Nous avons effectué notre audit selon les Normes internationales d’audit (ISA) 
telles qu’applicables en Belgique. Par ailleurs, nous avons appliqué les normes 
internationales d’audit approuvées par l’IAASB et applicables à la présente 
clôture et non encore approuvées au niveau national. Les responsabilités qui 
nous incombent en vertu de ces normes sont plus amplement décrites dans la 
section « Responsabilités du commissaire relatives à l’audit des comptes 
annuels » du présent rapport. Nous nous sommes conformés à toutes les 
exigences déontologiques qui s’appliquent à l’audit des comptes annuels en 
Belgique, en ce compris celles concernant l’indépendance.  
Nous avons obtenu de l’organe d’administration et des préposés de la Société, 
les explications et informations requises pour notre audit. 
Nous estimons que les éléments probants que nous avons recueillis sont 
suffisants et appropriés pour fonder notre opinion. 
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Responsabilités de l’organe d’administration relatives à l’établissement 
des comptes annuels 
L’organe d’administration est responsable de l'établissement des comptes 
annuels donnant une image fidèle conformément au référentiel comptable 
applicable en Belgique, ainsi que du contrôle interne qu’il estime nécessaire à 
l’établissement de comptes annuels ne comportant pas d’anomalies 
significatives, que celles-ci proviennent de fraudes ou résultent d’erreurs. 
Lors de l’établissement des comptes annuels, il incombe à l’organe 
d’administration d’évaluer la capacité de la Société à poursuivre son exploitation, 
de fournir, le cas échéant, des informations relatives à la continuité d’exploitation 
et d’appliquer le principe comptable de continuité d’exploitation, sauf si l’organe 
d’administration a l’intention de mettre la Société en liquidation ou de cesser ses 
activités ou s’il ne peut envisager une autre solution alternative réaliste.  
Responsabilités du commissaire relatives à l’audit des comptes annuels 
Nos objectifs sont d’obtenir l’assurance raisonnable que les comptes annuels 
pris dans leur ensemble ne comportent pas d’anomalies significatives, que 
celles-ci proviennent de fraudes ou résultent d’erreurs, et d’émettre un rapport 
du commissaire contenant notre opinion. L’assurance raisonnable correspond à 
un niveau élevé d’assurance, qui ne garantit toutefois pas qu’un audit réalisé 
conformément aux normes ISA permettra de toujours détecter toute anomalie 
significative existante. Les anomalies peuvent provenir de fraudes ou résulter 
d’erreurs et sont considérées comme significatives lorsque l‘on peut 
raisonnablement s’attendre à ce qu’elles puissent, prises individuellement ou en 
cumulé, influencer les décisions économiques que les utilisateurs des comptes 
annuels prennent en se fondant sur ceux-ci. 
Lors de l’exécution de notre contrôle, nous respectons le cadre légal, 
réglementaire et normatif qui s’applique à l’audit des comptes annuels en 
Belgique. L’étendue du contrôle légal des comptes annuels ne comprend pas 
d’assurance quant à la viabilité future de la Société ni quant à l’efficience ou 
l’efficacité avec laquelle l’organe d’administration a mené ou mènera les affaires 
de la Société. 
Dans le cadre d’un audit réalisé conformément aux normes ISA et tout au long 
de celui-ci, nous exerçons notre jugement professionnel et faisons preuve 
d’esprit critique. En outre: 

— nous identifions et évaluons les risques que les comptes annuels comportent 
des anomalies significatives, que celles-ci proviennent de fraudes ou 
résultent d’erreurs, définissons et mettons en œuvre des procédures d’audit 
en réponse à ces risques, et recueillons des éléments probants suffisants et 
appropriés pour fonder notre opinion. Le risque de non-détection d’une 
anomalie significative provenant d’une fraude est plus élevé que celui d’une 
anomalie significative résultant d’une erreur, car la fraude peut impliquer la 
collusion, la falsification, les omissions volontaires, les fausses déclarations 
ou le contournement du contrôle interne; 

— nous prenons connaissance du contrôle interne pertinent pour l’audit afin de 
définir des procédures d’audit appropriées en la circonstance, mais non dans 
le but d’exprimer une opinion sur l’efficacité du contrôle interne de la Société; 



Rapport du commissaire à l’assemblée générale de Fubon Ellipse (Belgium) SA sur les 
comptes annuels pour l’exercice clos le 31 décembre 2020 
 
 
 

 Document Classification: KPMG Public 3 
 

 

— nous apprécions le caractère approprié des méthodes comptables retenues 
et le caractère raisonnable des estimations comptables faites par l’organe 
d’administration, de même que des informations les concernant fournies par 
ce dernier; 

— nous concluons quant au caractère approprié de l’application par l’organe 
d’administration du principe comptable de continuité d’exploitation et, selon 
les éléments probants recueillis, quant à l’existence ou non d’une incertitude 
significative liée à des événements ou situations susceptibles de jeter un 
doute important sur la capacité de la Société à poursuivre son exploitation. 
Si nous concluons à l’existence d’une incertitude significative, nous sommes 
tenus d’attirer l’attention des lecteurs de notre rapport du commissaire sur 
les informations fournies dans les comptes annuels au sujet de cette 
incertitude ou, si ces informations ne sont pas adéquates, d’exprimer une 
opinion modifiée. Nos conclusions s’appuient sur les éléments probants 
recueillis jusqu’à la date de notre rapport du commissaire. Cependant, des 
situations ou événements futurs pourraient conduire la Société à cesser son 
exploitation;  

— nous apprécions la présentation d’ensemble, la structure et le contenu des 
comptes annuels et évaluons si les comptes annuels reflètent les opérations 
et événements sous-jacents d'une manière telle qu'ils en donnent une image 
fidèle. 

Nous communiquons à l’organe d’administration notamment l’étendue des 
travaux d'audit et le calendrier de réalisation prévus, ainsi que les constatations 
importantes relevées lors de notre audit, y compris toute faiblesse significative 
dans le contrôle interne.  

Autres obligations légales et réglementaires  
Responsabilités de l’organe d’administration 
L’organe d’administration est responsable de la préparation et du contenu du 
rapport de gestion, du respect des dispositions légales et réglementaires 
applicables à la tenue de la comptabilité ainsi que du respect du Code des 
sociétés et des associations et des statuts de la Société. 
Responsabilités du commissaire 
Dans le cadre de notre mission et conformément à la norme belge 
complémentaire aux normes internationales d’audit (ISA) applicables en 
Belgique, notre responsabilité est de vérifier, dans ses aspects significatifs, le 
rapport de gestion, et le respect de certaines dispositions du Code des sociétés 
et des associations et des statuts de la Société, ainsi que de faire rapport sur 
ces éléments. 
Aspects relatifs au rapport de gestion 
A l’issue des vérifications spécifiques sur le rapport de gestion, nous sommes 
d’avis que celui-ci concorde avec les comptes annuels pour le même exercice 
et a été établi conformément aux articles 3:5 et 3:6 du Code des sociétés et des 
associations.  
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Dans le cadre de notre audit des comptes annuels, nous devons également 
apprécier, en particulier sur la base de notre connaissance acquise lors de 
l’audit, si le rapport de gestion comporte une anomalie significative, à savoir une 
information incorrectement formulée ou autrement trompeuse. Sur la base de 
ces travaux, nous n’avons pas d’anomalie significative à vous communiquer.  
Mentions relatives à l’indépendance 
Notre cabinet de révision et notre réseau n’ont pas effectué de missions 
incompatibles avec le contrôle légal des comptes annuels et notre cabinet de 
révision est resté indépendant vis-à-vis de la Société au cours de notre mandat. 
Autres mentions 

— Sans préjudice d’aspects formels d’importance mineure, la comptabilité est 
tenue conformément aux dispositions légales et réglementaires applicables 
en Belgique. 

— La répartition des résultats proposée à l’assemblée générale est conforme 
aux dispositions légales et statutaires. 

— Nous n’avons pas à vous signaler d’opération conclue ou de décision prise 
en violation des statuts ou du Code des sociétés et des associations. 

 
Zaventem, le 22 mars 2021 

KPMG Réviseurs d’Entreprises 
Commissaire 
représentée par 

 

  

Melissa Carton 
Réviseur d’Entreprises 
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Statutory auditor’s report to the general meeting of Fubon Ellipse 
(Belgium) SA on the annual accounts as of and for the year ended 
31 December 2020 

FREE TRANSLATION OF UNQUALIFIED STATUTORY AUDITOR’S 
REPORT ORIGINALLY PREPARED IN FRENCH 
In the context of the statutory audit of the annual accounts of Fubon Ellipse 
(Belgium) SA (“the Company”), we provide you with our statutory auditor’s 
report. This includes our report on the annual accounts for the year ended 31 
December 2020, as well as other legal and regulatory requirements. Our report 
is one and indivisible. 
We were appointed as statutory auditor by the general meeting of 16 April 2019, 
in accordance with the proposal of the board of directors. Our mandate will 
expire on the date of the general meeting deliberating on the annual accounts 
for the year ended 31 December 2021. We have performed the statutory audit 
of the annual accounts of Fubon Ellipse (Belgium) SA for 5 consecutive financial 
years. 

Report on the annual accounts 
Unqualified opinion 
We have audited the annual accounts of the Company as of and for the year 
ended 31 December 2020, prepared in accordance with the financial reporting 
framework applicable in Belgium. These annual accounts comprise the balance 
sheet as at 31 December 2020, the income statement for the year then ended 
and notes. The balance sheet total amounts to EUR 135.991.421 and the 
income statement shows a profit for the year of EUR 728.960. 
In our opinion, the annual accounts give a true and fair view of the Company’s 
equity and financial position as at 31 December 2020 and of its financial 
performance for the year then ended in accordance with the financial reporting 
framework applicable in Belgium. 
Basis for our unqualified opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing 
(“ISAs”) as adopted in Belgium. In addition, we have applied the ISAs as issued 
by the IAASB and applicable for the current accounting year while these have 
not been adopted in Belgium yet. Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the “Statutory auditors’ responsibility for the audit of the 
annual accounts” section of our report. We have complied with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the annual accounts in Belgium, 
including the independence requirements. 
We have obtained from the board of directors and the Company’s officials the 
explanations and information necessary for performing our audit. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  
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Board of directors’ responsibilities for the preparation of the annual 
accounts  
The board of directors is responsible for the preparation of these annual 
accounts that give a true and fair view in accordance with the financial reporting 
framework applicable in Belgium, and for such internal control as board of 
directors determines, is necessary to enable the preparation of annual accounts 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
In preparing the annual accounts, the board of directors is responsible for 
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless the board of directors either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
Statutory auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the annual accounts 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the annual 
accounts as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of the users taken on the basis of these 
annual accounts.  
When performing our audit we comply with the legal, regulatory and professional 
requirements applicable to audits of the annual accounts in Belgium. The scope 
of the statutory audit of the annual accounts does not extend to providing 
assurance on the future viability of the Company nor on the efficiency or 
effectivity of how the board of directors has conducted or will conduct the 
business of the Company. 
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement 
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also perform the 
following procedures: 

— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the annual 
accounts, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control; 

— Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Company’s internal control; 

— Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 
board of directors; 
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— Conclude on the appropriateness of board of directors’ use of the going 
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the annual 
accounts or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to continue as a going concern;  

— Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the annual 
accounts, including the disclosures, and whether the annual accounts 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation. 

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
Other legal and regulatory requirements 
Responsibilities of the Board of directors 
The board of directors is responsible for the preparation and the content of the 
board of directors’ annual report on the annual accounts, for maintaining the 
Company’s accounting records in compliance with the applicable legal and 
regulatory requirements, as well as for the Company’s compliance with the 
Companies’ and Associations’ Code and the Company‘s articles of association. 
Statutory auditor’s responsibilities 
In the context of our engagement and in accordance with the Belgian standard 
which is complementary to the International Standards on Auditing as applicable 
in Belgium, our responsibility is to verify, in all material respects, the board of 
directors’ annual report on the annual accounts as well as compliance with 
certain requirements of the Companies’ and Associations’ Code and with the 
Company’s articles of association, and to report on these matters. 
Aspects concerning the board of directors’ annual report on the annual 
accounts 
Based on specific work performed on the board of directors’ annual report on the 
annual accounts, we are of the opinion that this report is consistent with the 
annual accounts for the same period and has been prepared in accordance with 
articles 3:5 and 3:6 of the Companies’ and Associations’ Code.  
In the context of our audit of the annual accounts, we are also responsible for 
considering, in particular based on the knowledge gained throughout the audit, 
whether the board of directors’ annual report on the annual accounts contains 
material misstatements, that is information incorrectly stated or misleading. In 
the context of the procedures carried out, we did not identify any material 
misstatements that we have to report to you.  
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Information about the independence 
Our audit firm and our network have not performed any engagement which is 
incompatible with the statutory audit of the annual accounts and our audit firm 
remained independent of the Company during the term of our mandate. 
Other aspects 

— Without prejudice to formal aspects of minor importance, the accounting 
records were maintained in accordance with the legal and regulatory 
requirements applicable in Belgium. 

— The appropriation of results proposed to the general meeting complies with 
the legal provisions and the provisions of the articles of association. 

— We do not have to inform you of any transactions undertaken or decisions 
taken in breach of the Company‘s articles of association or the Companies’ 
and Associations’ Code. 

 
Zaventem, 22 March 2021 

KPMG Bedrijfsrevisoren - Réviseurs d’Entreprises 
Statutory Auditor 
represented by 

 

  

Melissa Carton 
Bedrijfsrevisor / Réviseur d’Entreprises 

 
 

 



 









































































【附件五】 

案名: 德國法蘭克福 Eurotower 
一、基本資料 
新設日期 2019 年 4 月 5 日 
交易完成日期 2019 年 6 月 1 日 
公司名稱 Fubon Eurotower (Luxembourg) S.à r.l. 
不動產所在地 Kaiserstraße 29, 60311 Frankfurt am Main, Germany (德國法蘭克福) 
土地面積 5,052 ㎡(約 1,528 坪) 
建物面積 46,962 ㎡(約 14,206 坪) 
建物樓層 B5~40F 
使用情形 辦公室 
 
二、租金收益率檢核 
                                租金收益率檢核                          € , %                
契約年租金   €25,385,681 
最新不動產估值(2020 年 12 月 31 日)     €528,800,000 
以估值計算收益率   4.80% 
估值收益率是否符合當地市場行情      是 
註: 大樓出租率 100%，估值收益率 4.80%，高於當地辦公大樓買賣成交市場行情 2.75%-

3.75%，反映本案較高之屋齡(1977 年完工)，以及 ECB 支付之租金水準(€45.05/m²)較
當地辦公大樓租金行情(€28.50/m²-€42.00/m²)高之情形。 

 
三、承租概況 

 
  

樓層 使用類型 承租戶 租賃面積 年租金 租金起算日 租約到期日 剩餘租期(年)
37~39F 機械層 91 m2

36F 會議室 959 m2
35F 董事及會議室 941 m2

32~34F 辦公室

30~31F 機械層

15~29F 辦公室

14F 機械層 0 m2
4~13F 辦公室 9,303 m2

3F 機械層 0 m2
2F 會議室、餐廳、廚房 3,339 m2
1F 辦公室 3,300 m2
GF 大廳、檢查哨 2,557 m2
B1F 健身房、檔案室 3,444 m2

B2~B5F 停車場及其他 4,307 m2
（總車位數329輛） 46,962 m2

European Central Bank
(ECB) € 25,385,681

18,721 m2

Eurotower樓層使用及面積表

1 Jul 2014 31 Dec 2025 5.00
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Fubon Eurotower (Luxembourg) S.à r.l.

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Notes

For the year ended 

31 December 2020

Period from 5 April 2019 

(date of incorporation) 

to 31 December 2019
€ €

Revenue 5 31,698,306 17,831,072

Property operating expenses 6 (7,067,503) (3,345,629)

Fair value movement on investment property 11 (7,800,000) (27,411,090)

Administrative expenses 7 (1,141,914) (744,981)

Operating profit/(loss) 15,688,889 (13,670,628)

Net finance cost 8 (6,410,358) (3,909,368)
Profit/(Loss) before tax 9,278,531 (17,579,996)

Income tax expense 9 (1,565,811) (897,563)
Profit/(Loss) after tax for the year/period 7,712,720 (18,477,559)

Other comprehensive income -                                              -                                              

Total comprehensive income/(loss) 7,712,720 (18,477,559)

The notes on pages 12 to 23 form an integral part of these annual financial statements.

8



DocuSign Envelope ID: 10018FE9-C28A-4411-B97A-DD77C9835D42DocuSign Envelope ID: 206DAE4A-766B-4CE4-AD4F-F3708B06A0A6



Statement of Changes in Equity

Share

capital

Retained

earnings

Total

equity

€ € €

Opening balance at 5 April 2019 -                           -                           -                           

Issue of shares 219,997,000          -                           219,997,000          

Total comprehensive loss for the period -                           (18,477,559) (18,477,559)

Balance at 31 December 2019 219,997,000 (18,477,559) 201,519,441

Total comprehensive income for the year -                           7,712,720 7,712,720               

Balance at 31 December 2020 219,997,000 (10,764,839) 209,232,161

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Fubon Eurotower (Luxembourg) S.à r.l.

The notes on pages 12 to 23 form an integral part of these annual financial statements.
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Fubon Eurotower (Luxembourg) S.à r.l.

Statement of Cash Flows

Notes

For the year ended 

31 December 2020

Period from 5 April 2019 

(date of incorporation) 

to 31 December 2019
€ €

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/(Loss) before tax 9,278,531 (17,579,996)

Adjustments for:
Net finance cost 8 6,410,358 3,909,368
Decrease in fair value of investment property 11 7,800,000 27,411,090

23,488,889 13,740,462
Working capital adjustments:
Increase in trade and other receivables and other assets (1,294,565) (750,432)
Increase in trade and other payables 1,372,562 1,017,192
Cash generated from operating activities 23,566,886 14,007,222

Add bank interest received 764 -                                         

Less interest paid (6,502,114) (2,259,543)
Net cash from operating activities 17,065,536 11,747,679

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of investment property 11 -                                         (564,011,090)
Net cash used in investing activities -                                         (564,011,090)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from the issue of shareholder's loan 16 -                                         344,500,000
Proceeds from the issue of share capital 15 -                                         219,997,000
Shareholder's loan repaid 16 (19,000,000) -                                         
Net cash from financing activities (19,000,000) 564,497,000

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,934,464) 12,233,589
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year/period 12,233,589 -                                         
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year/period 12 10,299,125 12,233,589

For the year ended 31 December 2020

The notes on pages 12 to 23 form an integral part of these annual financial statements.
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Notes to the annual financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020

1. Reporting entity

Basis of preparation

Changes in accounting policy and adoption of new accounting standards

(i) New and amended standards effective and adopted during the year

(ii) New and amended standards issued, not yet effective and not early adopted

Going concern

Fubon Eurotower (Luxembourg) S.à r.l.

Fubon Eurotower (Luxembourg) S.à r.l. ("the Company") is a company domiciled in Luxembourg and established for an unlimited

period. The registered address of the Company is 14, rue Edward Steichen, L-2540 Luxembourg with R.C.S. number B 233573.

These annual financial statements are prepared as at and for the year ended 31 December 2020. The Company has been

established to acquire a freehold property, Eurotower, Kaiserstraße 29, Frankfurt, Germany (the "Property"). The principal activity

of the Company is to receive rental income from the underlying property.

These annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the International Financial

Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") and as adopted by the European

Union (EU).

These annual financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for investment property that is

stated at fair value. 

The preparation of annual financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement requirements of IFRS as

adopted by the EU requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement

in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. Changes in assumptions may have a significant impact on the annual 

financial statements in the year the assumptions changed. The Managers believe that the underlying assumptions are

appropriate. The areas involving higher degree of judgement of complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are

significant to the financial statements are disclosed in note 3. 

2. Significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these annual financial statements are set out below:

The Company has made a profit of €7,712,720 (2019: loss of €18,477,559) for the year ended 31 December 2020. As at 31

December 2020, the Company has positive net assets of €209,232,161 (2019: €201,519,441) and net current assets of €5,932,161

(2019: €9,419,441).

The following standards and amendments have been adopted by the Company for the first time for the financial year beginning

on 1 January 2020:

At the date of authorisation of these annual financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations which have not

been applied in these annual financial statements were in issue but not yet effective and have not been adopted by the EU:

- Reference to the Conceptual Framework - Amendments to IFRS 3 (effective 1 January 2022)

- Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current - Amendments to IAS 1 (effective 1 January 2023)

For the Standards and Interpretations listed above, the Managers do not expect that the adoption of these standards will have a

material impact on the annual financial statements of the Company in future years.

- Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 - Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 (effective 1 January 2021)

- IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (effective 1 January 2023)

For the Standards and Interpretations listed above, the Managers assess that these are not relevant and applicable to the

Company.

- Definition of Material (Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8)
- The Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
- COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to IFRS 16)

- Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract - Amendments to IAS 37 (effective 1 January 2022)

- Definition of a Business (Amendments to IFRS 3)
- Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7)

The adoption of these amendments did not have any material impact on the reported performance, financial position or

disclosures of the Company.
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Notes to the annual financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Going concern (continued)

Foreign currency transactions

Revenue recognition

Dividends

Expenses

Net finance cost

Investment property

Expenses include legal, accounting, auditing, asset management, investment management and other fees. They are recognised as

expenses in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income in the year in which they are incurred on an

accruals basis.

The Company acts as a principal rather than an agent in relation to service charges and other recoverables from tenants. This is

due to the assessment that the contractual risks and obligations of these transactions remain with the Company and hence, both

income and expenses have been recorded on a gross rather than a net basis in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other

Comprehensive Income.

It is the Managers' opinion that the Company has adequate cash resources to meet its requirements and will continue to generate

positive cash flows from its operating activities on its own account for the foreseeable future bearing in mind the assets of the

Company. As such, the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.  

Additionally, revenue is secured through the existing signed lease agreement which has an unexpired term of 5 years.

Net finance cost relate to interest income and expenses which are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other

Comprehensive Income using the effective interest rate method.

Investment property comprises property which is held for long term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both in accordance

with IAS 40 ‘Investment Property.’ The investment property is initially measured at cost and is subsequently measured at fair

value at the year end with fair value movement recorded in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income. 

Subsequent costs are included in the investment property’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic

benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs

and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income during the financial year in

which they are incurred.

Fubon Eurotower (Luxembourg) S.à r.l.

The functional and presentation currency is the Euro. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest Euro unless otherwise

indicated. Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Euro's at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the

transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate of exchange ruling at

the Statement of Financial Position date.  

Non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. All exchange

differences are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

Revenue includes rental income from property. Rental income from operating leases is recognised in revenue on a straight line

basis over the lease term.

Service charges and other recoveries are recognised as other income when the related services are provided to the extent the

costs are recoverable from tenants.

Dividend distributions to the shareholder are recognised in the Company’s annual financial statements in the year in which the

dividends are approved. 

The investment property is not depreciated.

The Company has an established framework with respect to the measurement of the fair value of investment property, which is in

line with its Group's accounting policy. On a quarterly basis, two external valuations are performed and the lower of the two value

is adopted as the fair value of the investment property at quarter-end.
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Notes to the annual financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments

(i) Recognition and initial measurement

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement

(iii) Derecognition

(iv) Offsetting

(v) Impairment

Measurement of ECLs

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash in hand and deposits repayable on demand, less overdrafts payable on demand.

Trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments) are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets

and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument.

The principal financial instruments used by the Company are cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, shareholder

loan and trade and other payables. For classification and subsequent measurement of all financial assets and liabilities, refer to

the disclosure notes below for each financial instrument.

A financial asset is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or the Company has

transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership are

transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantial risks and rewards of ownership and it does not

retain control of the financial asset.

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire. On

derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the consideration paid is

recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Statement of Financial Position when, and

only when, the Company has a legal right to offset the amounts and it intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset

and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Company recognises loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (“ECLs”) on financial assets measured at amortised cost.

These are measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following, which are measured at 12-month ECLs:

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when

estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue

cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical

experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30 days past due.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e.

the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company

expects to receive). ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

Fubon Eurotower (Luxembourg) S.à r.l.

As at reporting date, the Company does not have significant financial asset that carries high credit risk. The Company’s majority

financial asset is cash and cash equivalents which does not expose the Company to high credit risk.

Cash and cash equivalents are classified as measured at amortised cost, less provision for ECLs.

 financial assets that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and
 other financial assets for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the asset) has not 

increased significantly since initial recognition.

 the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the Company to actions 
such as realising security (if any is held); or

 the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.
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Notes to the annual financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

Other assets

Trade and other receivables

Shareholder's loans

Trade and other payables

Share capital

Taxation 

3. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty 

Trade and other receivables consist of trade receivables from tenants and VAT receivable. Trade receivables are recognised

initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, less provision for impairment.

All loans are accounted for on initial recognition at fair value less directly attributable transaction costs. After initial recognition,

the loans are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables consist of rent received in advance, VAT payable, withholding and income tax payable and other

accrued expenses. Trade payables are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Shares are classified as equity when there is no obligation to transfer cash or other assets.

Receivables are discounted where the time value of money is material. The Company adopts the general approach to recognise

expected credit loss ("ECLs") on trade and other receivables by assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since

initial recognition and determing if a loss allowance needs to be recognised. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor,

probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments are

considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. Trade receivables are not materially different to their fair value.

Under the German tax law, the Company is taxed on taxable profits arising from its German real estate investment at the effective

tax rate of 15.825%. Under the Luxembourg tax law, the Company is taxed on taxable profits arising from its leasing of fixtures

and fittings at the effective tax rate of 22.8%. 

As required by IAS 12 "Income taxes", deferred tax is provided in full on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of

assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or

substantially enacted by the reporting date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the

deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investment properties, except where it is probable that the

temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The Company is subject to all taxes applicable in Luxembourg and Germany. 

The preparation of annual financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement requirements of IFRS as

adopted by the EU requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement

in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. Changes in assumptions may have a significant impact on the annual 

financial statements in the year the assumptions changed.

Fubon Eurotower (Luxembourg) S.à r.l.

Other assets consist of service charge cash and prepaid expenses. Service charge cash constitutes restricted cash and is therefore

not available for general use by the Company. 

Cash receipts and cash disbursements occurring during the reporting year for acquiring or disposing of financial assets are

classified as cash flows from investing activities. Cash receipts and cash disbursements to lenders and shareholders are classified

as cash flows from financing activities. Cash receipts and cash disbursements resulting from the retention of the Company's

financial assets and from the general operation of the Company are classified as cash flows from operating activities.
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Notes to the annual financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

3. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Measurement of fair value

Fair value measurement using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)

Revenue recognition

Deferred taxes

4. Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

Principal financial instruments 

The Company has an established framework with respect to the measurement of the fair value of the investment property. On a

quarterly basis, two external valuations are performed and the lower of the two value is adopted as the fair value of the

investment property at quarter-end.

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

There has been no transfer between the levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting year.

Fubon Eurotower (Luxembourg) S.à r.l.

As per the valuation report, the investment property is located within a prime Frankfurt CBD location. The net initial yield was the

significant unobservable input, ranging from 4.26% to 4.42%. The higher the yield applied, the lower the fair value of investment

property will be. Refer to note 11 for sensitivity analysis over the significant unobservable inputs to the valuation of investment

property.

The principal financial instruments used by the Company, from which financial instrument risk arises, are as follows:  

The Board of Managers have reviewed the valuations and assumptions applied and have concluded that they are reasonable and

elected to adopt the lower valuation in the annual financial statements. The Board of Managers believe that the chosen valuation

techniques and assumptions are appropriate because these are in line with market practices. When measuring the fair value of

the property, management makes use of market observable data as far as feasible. The fair value of the property is categorized in

level 3 of the fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

Vistra (Luxembourg) S.à r.l. who provide secretarial and administration services to the Company, has its own business risk

assessment which the Managers utilise for the purposes of the Company. These policies are described below. 

The Managers of the Company review and agree policies for managing its risk exposure. The primary objectives of the financial

risk management function are to establish appropriate risk limits, and then ensure that exposure to risks stays within these limits.

The Company's financial asset and financial liabilities comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, trade and

other payables and shareholder's loan payable that arise directly from its operations.     

The Company acts as a principal rather than an agent in relation to service charges and other recoverables from tenants. This is

due to the assessment that the contractual risks and obligations of these transactions remain with the Company and hence, both

income and expenses have been recorded on a gross rather than a net basis in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other

Comprehensive Income.

The Board of Managers have reviewed and concluded that it is reasonable that no deferred tax assets be recognised in the annual

financial statements. They do not believe that it is probable that the Company will generate future taxable profits against which

the temporary differences can be utilised, given the reducing lease term of the sole tenant of the building which may impact

future valuations of the investment property. 

 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1).
 Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or 

indirectly (Level 2).
 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (Level 3).

 credit risk
 liquidity risk
 market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk)

 Cash and cash equivalents
 Trade and other receivables
 Trade and other payables
 Shareholder's loan payable

16



Notes to the annual financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

4. Financial risk management (continued)

31 December 31 December
2020 2019

€ €
10,299,125 12,233,589

1,958,142 677,456
43,686 57,812

12,300,953 12,968,857

31 December 2020 Due less than 1 Due between 1 Due between 5
year and 5 years and 10 years Total

€ € € €
Trade and other payables 2,389,754                              -                                -   2,389,754
Shareholder's loan payable - principal                              -                                -   325,500,000 325,500,000
Shareholder's loan payable - interest 6,184,502 24,754,950 22,128,655 53,068,107

8,574,256 24,754,950 347,628,655 380,957,861

31 December 2019 Due less than 1 Due between 1 Due between 5
year and 5 years and 10 years Total

€ € € €
Trade and other payables 981,983                              -                                -   981,983
Shareholder's loan payable - principal                              -                                -   344,500,000 344,500,000
Shareholder's loan payable - interest 6,563,434 26,199,938 29,983,775 62,747,147

7,545,417 26,199,938 374,483,775 408,229,130

Fubon Eurotower (Luxembourg) S.à r.l.

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its

contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables from the tenant and cash and cash equivalents held

at banks.   

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market

prices. The Company's market risk arises from open positions in interest bearing assets and liabilities, to the extent that these are

exposed to general and specific market movements.   

IFRS 7 requires disclosures of sensitivity analysis for each type of market risk to which the entity is exposed at the report date

showing how profit or loss and equity would have been affected by changing the relevant risk variables that were reasonably

possible at that date. 

As discussed below, the Company does not have significant exposure to price risk or cash flow and fair value interest rate risk and

therefore no sensitivity analysis for those risks has been disclosed.

Cash and cash equivalents

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2020 approximates the carrying value. As at 31 December 2020, cash

balances were held with ING Luxembourg, Société Anonyme ("ING") and Royal Bank of Scotland International Limited ("RBSI").

The credit ratings of ING and RBSI as rated by S&P Credit Rating Agent were both A- as of 31 December 2020 (2019: both A-). As

such, no ECLs have been recognised on the cash and cash equivalents balances.

Trade and other receivables

Credit risk

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk by class of financial asset as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 is as

follows: 

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company's

approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities

when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's

position.    

The Company's liquidity position is monitored and reviewed on a regular basis by the Managers. The amounts disclosed in the

below table are the contractual undiscounted cashflows.  

The maturity analysis of financial instruments as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 is as follows:

Other assets
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Notes to the annual financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

4. Financial risk management (continued)

5. Revenue Year ended Period ended
31 December 31 December

2020 2019
€ €

Rental income 25,385,681 14,654,128
Service charge income 6,129,154 3,176,412
Tenant recoverable income 175,409 532
Other income 8,062 -                          

31,698,306 17,831,072

6. Property operating expenses Year ended Period ended
31 December 31 December

2020 2019
€ €

Non-recoverable property expenses (647,231) (68,072)
Valuation fees (53,462) (76,160)
Project monitoring fees (42,362) (24,453)
Service charge expenses (6,129,154) (3,176,412)
Tenant recoverable expenses (175,409) (532)
Legal fees (19,885) -                          

(7,067,503) (3,345,629)

7. Administrative expenses Year ended Period ended
31 December 31 December

2020 2019
€ €

Asset management fees (878,146) (512,161)
Legal fees (10,423) (29,567)
Tax compliance (44,335) (51,353)
Audit fees (45,708) (37,750)
Bank charges (45,038) (76,036)
Accounting and administration fees (117,729) (38,114)
Luxembourg Net Wealth Tax (535) -                          

(1,141,914) (744,981)

a) Foreign exchange risk
The Company is not exposed to foreign currency risk since all of its financial assets and liabilities are denominated in Euro, which

is the functional and presentation currency of the Company. 

b) Price risk
The Company is exposed to property price and property rental risk which are not financial instruments. Further, the Company is

also exposed to future valuation risk due to uncertainties of how the German economy and financial market will be affected by

the global economy. The Company is not exposed to market risk with respect to financial instruments as it does not hold any

marketable equity securities.    

The Company, through its active management and review processes, will seek to minimise these risks wherever possible. 

c) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
The Company is not exposed to cash flow risk in relation to interest payable on the shareholder loan amounting to €325,500,000

(2019: €344,500,000) with Fubon, given that the loan carries a fixed interest rate as described in note 16. The loan is repayable on

29 April 2029.    

All trade and other receivables and payables are interest free and have settlement dates within one year.

Capital management 
The Company considers its capital to comprise its ordinary share capital (see note 15) and retained earnings. 

The Managers' objective when capital is to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a going concern in the short and long

term in order to provide returns for the shareholder. There are no external regulatory requirements imposed on the Company

with regards to capital management. 

Fubon Eurotower (Luxembourg) S.à r.l.
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Notes to the annual financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

8. Net finance cost Year ended Period ended
31 December 31 December

2020 2019
€ €

Interest on shareholder's loan (6,411,122) (3,909,368)
Bank interest income 764 -                          

(6,410,358) (3,909,368)

9. Income tax expense

Year ended Period ended
31 December 31 December

2020 2019
€ €

Current income tax expense (1,565,811) (897,563)

For the year ended 31 December 2020: Germany Luxembourg Total
€ € €

Profit/(Loss) before tax 9,588,752 (310,221) 9,278,531

Taxation of 15.825% (Germany) and 22.8% (Luxembourg) (1,517,420) 70,730 (1,446,690)

Effect of:
Fair value movement on investment property (1,234,350) -                          (1,234,350)

Depreciation adjustment 1,185,959 47,634                   1,233,593

Unrecognised deferred tax from tax losses carried forward -                          (118,364) (118,364)

Total tax charge (1,565,811) -                          (1,565,811)

For the period ended 31 December 2019: Germany Luxembourg Total
€ € €

Loss before tax (17,367,667) (212,329) (17,579,996)

Taxation of 15.825% (Germany) and 22.8% (Luxembourg) 2,748,433 48,411 2,796,844

Effect of:
Fair value movement on investment property (4,337,805) -                          (4,337,805)

Depreciation adjustment 691,809 27,787 719,596

Unrecognised deferred tax from tax losses carried forward -                          (76,198) (76,198)

Total tax charge (897,563) -                          (897,563)

10. Managers and employees

11. Investment property
Land Building Total

€ € €
Balance at 1 January 2020 162,664,000          373,936,000         536,600,000          
Fair value movement on investment property 63,701,000 (71,501,000) (7,800,000)
Balance at 31 December 2020 226,365,000 302,435,000 528,800,000

Fubon Eurotower (Luxembourg) S.à r.l.

The Company is subject to all taxes applicable in Luxembourg as a result of it being a Luxembourg registered company; and is also

subject to all taxes applicable in Germany as a consequence of the income generating property being situated in Frankfurt,

Germany. Under the German tax law, the Company is taxed on taxable profits arising from its German real estate investment at

the effective tax rate of 15.825%. Under the Luxembourg tax law, the Company is taxed on taxable profits arising from its leasing

of fixtures and fittings at the effective tax rate of 22.8%. 

The Company has no employees. Please see related party note (refer to note 21) for details of corporate services fees paid to

Vistra (Luxembourg) S.à r.l. and Patrizia Deutschland GmbH.

A reconciliation between the profit/(loss) before tax and the tax position, split by jurisdiction:

The major components of income tax expense for the year ended 31 December 2020 and period ended 31 December 2019:
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Notes to the annual financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

11. Investment property (continued)
Land Building Total

€ € €
Balance at 5 April 2019 -                          -                          -                          
Acquisitions 214,849,950 349,161,140 564,011,090
Fair value movement on investment property (52,185,950) 24,774,860 (27,411,090)
Balance at 31 December 2019 162,664,000 373,936,000 536,600,000

Measurement of fair value

(i) Fair value hierarchy

(ii) Valuation technique and significant unobservable inputs

Yield

4.42%

Investment property pledged as security

12. Cash and cash equivalents 31 December 31 December
2020 2019

€ €
Cash and cash equivalents 10,299,125 12,233,589

13. Other assets 31 December 31 December
2020 2019

€ €
Service charge cash 1,958,142 677,456
Prepaid taxes 16,698 15,164
Prepaid property insurance 26,471 -                          

2,001,311 692,620

The value of the investment property has been determined by an external and independent property valuer, Savills Immobilien

Beratungs-GmbH ("Savills"), at reporting date. The fair value measurement of the property has been classified as a Level 3 fair

value based on the inputs to the valuation technique used.

The table below depicts the valuation technique used in measuring the fair value of the property, as well as the significant

unobservable inputs used.

The investment property with a market value of €528,800,000 (2019: €536,600,000) has been pledged to secure the shareholder's

loan received from Fubon Life Insurance Company Limited (note 16). The investment property has been pledged as security for

shareholder's loan under a mortgage. The Company is not allowed to pledge the asset as security for other borrowings or to sell

them to another entity.

The valuation has been 

undertaken using the 

Discounted Cash Flow 

method.

Net Initial Yield

The above have been calculated after allowing for purchaser's costs at 6.50% in accordance with standard market practice in

Germany.

Investment property consists of one freehold interest property, Eurotower, located at Kaiserstraße 29, Frankfurt, Germany (the

"Property"). This was purchased by the Company for consideration of €530,000,000 plus acquisition costs on 1 June 2019.

The investment property is currently leased to a sole tenant, the European Central Bank ("ECB") who occupies the whole building.

The rent is reviewed annually to Consumer Price Index ("CPI") with effect from 1 January every year.

Fubon Eurotower (Luxembourg) S.à r.l.

Valuation technique
Significant 

unobservable input

Relationship between significant unobservable input and 

fair value movement

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand with ING Luxembourg, Société Anonyme ("ING") and Royal Bank of Scotland

International Limited ("RBSI"). Refer to note 4 for the credit ratings of these institutions.

a. The valuation would be €541,100,000 at a net 
initial yield of 4.32%.

b. The valuation would be €517,100,000 at a net 
initial yield of 4.52%.
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Notes to the annual financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

14. Trade and other receivables 31 December 31 December
2020 2019

€ €
Accrued income -                          49,020
Other receivables 43,686 8,792

43,686 57,812

15. Called-up share capital 31 December 31 December
2020 2019

€ €
Called-up Share Capital 219,997,000 219,997,000

16. Shareholder's loan payable 31 December 31 December
2020 2019

€ €
Amounts due in less than one year
Accrued interest for the year 1,558,833 1,649,825

Amounts falling due after more than one year
Shareholder's loan from Fubon Life Insurance Company Limited 325,500,000 344,500,000

17. Trade and other payables 31 December 31 December
2020 2019

€ €
Service charge liability 1,292,518 239,848
VAT payable -                          35,209
Income tax payable 2,463,374 897,563
Other accruals 391,493 469,856
Accounts payable 705,743 272,279

4,853,128 1,914,755

The Company does not have external debt, neither is a guarantor nor provide its assets as a security for the indebtedness of

others, and there are no encumbrances on the Investment property that the Company owns.

The fair value of trade and other receivables approximates the carrying value above.

Fubon Eurotower (Luxembourg) S.à r.l.

As at 31 December 2020, an amount of €325,500,000 was drawn by the Company following the repayment of €19,000,000 on 31

July 2020. The fair value of the loan at the reporting date is €326,238,468 (2019: €345,327,697). This is a level 2 valuation under

IFRS 13.

The fair value of trade and other payables approximates the carrying value above. 

The Company entered into a loan agreement with its sole shareholder, Fubon Life Insurance Company Limited, with a total

commitment of €344,500,000. On 28 May 2019, the total amount of the loan facility €344,500,000 was drawndown. The loan is

secured, bears interest at a fixed rate of 1.90% per annum and interest is payable in arrears on a quarterly basis. The loan has a 10

year term and is due for repayment on 29 April 2029.  

On 5 April 2019, the Company issued 20,100 ordinary shares at €1,000 each. Subsequently on 28 May 2019, the Company issued a

further 199,897 ordinary shares at €1,000 each. As at 31 December 2019, the Company's called-up share capital is €219,997,000

comprising of 219,997 ordinary shares of €1,000 each, with all shares authorised, subscribed and fully paid-up. There has been no

movement for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Notes to the annual financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

18. Operating leases - Company as lessor

31 December 31 December
2020 2019

€ €
25,309,776 25,385,681
25,309,776 25,385,681
25,309,776 25,385,681
25,309,776 25,385,681
25,309,776 25,385,681

-                          25,385,681
126,548,880 152,314,086

19. Cash flows from financing activities

Shareholder's loan Share capital Total
€ € €

Balance at 5 April 2019 -                          -                          -                          
Proceeds from the issue of shareholder's loan 344,500,000 -                          344,500,000
Proceeds from the issue of share capital -                          219,997,000 219,997,000
Balance at 31 December 2019 344,500,000 219,997,000 564,497,000

Repayment of shareholder's loan (19,000,000) -                          (19,000,000)
Balance at 31 December 2020 325,500,000 219,997,000 545,497,000

20. Parent and ultimate controlling party

21. Related party transactions

22. Managers' remuneration 

During the year ended 31 December 2020, €25,385,681 (2019: €14,654,128) was recognised as rental income by the Company.

Two to three years
Three to four years
Four to five years

No emoluments were paid to the Managers during the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: nil).

The future aggregate minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Less than one year 
One to two years

Total
More than five years

Patrizia Deutschland GmbH acts as asset manager for the Company and the asset management fees during the year ended 31

December 2020 amounted to €878,146 (2019: €512,161). The asset management fees payable as at 31 December 2020 was

€217,967 (2019: €220,181).

Vistra (Luxembourg) S.à r.l. acts as administrator and secretary to the Company. Vistra (Luxembourg) S.à r.l. also provides

managers to the Company. Administration fees for the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to €117,729 (2019: €38,114).

The administration fees payable as at 31 December 2020 was €29,140 (2019: €38,114).

All of the above transactions are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions.

Fubon Eurotower (Luxembourg) S.à r.l.

The immediate parent entity is Fubon Life Insurance Company Limited. The ultimate controlling party is Fubon Financial Holding

Co., Ltd, which is incorporated in Taiwan with its registration no. 2881. The largest group in which the results of the Company are

consolidated is Fubon Financial Holding Co., Ltd in Taiwan. The consolidated financial statements of the latter are available to the

public and can be obtained from http://mops.twse.com.tw/mops/web/index.  

At 31 December 2020, the shareholder's loan balance amounted to €325,500,000 (2019: €344,500,000). During the year ended 31

December 2020, €6,411,122 (2019: €3,909,368) was payable to the shareholder in respect of the shareholder's loan interest, of

which the amount outstanding as at 31 December 2020 was €1,558,833 (2019: €1,649,825).
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Notes to the annual financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

23. Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic

24. Subsequent events

Since the announcement of the COVID-19 global pandemic by the World Health Organisation on 11 March 2020, there has been

significant market volatility and economic disruption. The Managers have considered the impact of COVID-19 on the going

concern assumption of the Company. The Company has a net current assets position of €5,932,161 as at 31 December 2020

(2019: €9,419,441). For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company made a profit after tax of €7,712,720 (2019: loss after

tax of €18,477,559). Rental income has been received during the year ended 31 December 2020 and the Company is expected to

generate further rental income for the foreseeable future. The Managers are closely monitoring the effect of this pandemic on

the Company and believe that the Company is well placed to manage its risks successfully despite the economic outlook and

uncertainties. The Company has not been significantly impacted by the pandemic as it continues to receive rental income in full

from its sole tenant. Therefore, the Managers do not anticipate any significant impact on the operations of the Company as the

pandemic continues to subside. The Managers have concluded that the impact of COVID-19 does not represent a material

uncertainty in relation to the Company's ability to continue as a going concern through to the date of the issuance of these annual

financial statements. 

Fubon Eurotower (Luxembourg) S.à r.l.

There have been no significant events after the reporting date and up to the date of signing these annual financial statements that

require disclosure.
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